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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Our identity

Coast Water Works Development Agency (CVIMDA is a corporate body established under the Provisions of
the Water Act 2002 of the Laws of Kenya and it is domiciled in Kenya. When it became operational, under the
Water Act 2002, the Agenry was known as Coast Water Services Board (CWSB) and it has been operating
with that name up to 3'a May 2019. Through Legal Notice Number 27 ol26h April 2019, and with reference to
Water Act 2016, the Cabinet Secretary for Water and Sanitation established eight entities and named them
'Water Works Development Agencies" among them CWWDA and appointed 3'o May 201g as tre
commencement date for this change.

CWWI-,IA draws its mandir'^ frcrn the Wate . .i:t of 2016. As per the Act, tlre Agency's rrrarrrii: o ii::iudes;
a. lJrrdertakc the development :Ti:-;'r'icrrance anC management of Natinnat Public \rVater works:

b. Operate the water works and provicie water services as a water service provider, until such a time the
rOsporrsihrrtlies for the operation and management of watenvorr.starr. t?,rlled over to a County

Government, joint 
"ommittee, 

Authority of County Government or water services prov:Jer,

c. Provide reserve capacity for purposes of providing water services where the Regulatory Board orders
the hansfer of water services functions from a defaulting water services provider to another licensee,

d. Provide technical services and capacity building to such County Govemment and water providers,

e. Provide to the Cabinet Secretary technical support in discharge of his or her funclions under the

Constitution and the WaterAct 2016.

O'TVUDA is expected to conffiute to accelerated delivery of water and sanitation services ainred at progressive
realization of fte right to water and reasonable standards of sanitation as prcvided,fur'.:nder Article 43 of the
Constitution which states that, 'every person has the right to reasonable stadards of sanitatkn and to ctem
and safe water in adequate'quantities'.

b) PrincipalAetivities

The principal activities of the agenry are to ensure efficient, effective and sustainable provision of quality and
affordable water seMces (defined to include sewerage) in its area of jurisdiction - Ivlombasa County, Kilffi
County Lamu County, Kwale County, Taita Taveta County and Tana River County.

Vision

CWWDA's Vision is "To be a rryorld class water and sandatro, infrasnudtre develqment ageocy-.

Mission

Ttn Misston is 'Io deve@ quality water and sanitation infras1rlffirc ad ffier butk r,ratersennces fora

sslahabb err:rcny aN sooa, groii,trr. .

lldo

The Coa$ Wder \rYorks Derelopment Agency nrilb b '"yYater fw GeneratixtE'

tv
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Core Values

C\^MDA's Core values are

[.

iii.

iv.

Teamwork - To fully subscribe to the principles of teamwork as a key attribute in executing our

mandate

lntegrity - To uphold a high degree of honesty and integrity in dealing with stakeholders

Professionalism - To offer our services in a professional manner and with expertise

Custolner focused - To be committed in exceeding the expectations of otrr stakeholders

through coniinuous impruver,ent of oui seiv,, qr; arrd etJecrr''. '.r"nmunication u,ith all

strkr rr.!,-lers.

Acco,,ntabilrty - To exercise prrdence,in use of public resource entrusted to us

Transparency - To always be open to our stakeholders in our actions, decisions and policies.

i.

V

vt.

Key Responsibilities

The key responsihilities of CWWDA include

i) Ownership and holding of water and sewerage assetsfinfrastnrchrre on beMf ol the National
Goremmenl

ttd Planning, de\@{nent and expansron ot water and sewelage rnfrastruc{ure on behaf ot the Natknd
Govemment.

iii) Assisting the County Govemmerrts witrin its jurisdiction, during the transition period, in contracting ,.rut

water and seyyefage servtces provision to Water Services ftovides (WSPs) and in the rnonitoring of
water and selverage services provision.

Strateqic direction.

Strategic Themes

To be able to undertale its rnandate effedfuety, CWWDA has identified tirc fo$or,'ng as tre narn operatUnat
themes.

i. Human resource

ii. lnfrastructure developrnent and bu[< water operations

rii. Resource rnobiftzation

w. Goverrnnce and corporab conrnunication

v
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Strategic Objectives

Based on the identified strategic themes, C\ /VVDA has resolved to focus on the accomplishment of various
strategic cbjectives over a five-year period from June 2018 to June 2023. The sti'ategic objectives reflect the
key result areas that will respond to particular sets of strategic theme and challenges facing the agency.
The following are the strategic objectives: -

i. To recruit and retain at least B0% highly qualified staff by 2023

ii. To increase water production to 90% and water eoverage by 80% by 2021

iii. To improve ICT infraskucture and services from 40% to 80% by 2023

iv. To improve water coverage from 56% to $Ao/oby 2023
\.'. [o irnprnve r. ..,u,'\ue co[eci.lr,.l:lm 60% to 90o/, by 20?3

vr. To reduce operat'on cost frrom 1.t% to 15%by ZA/3
i'!i. To create altcrrratvs souce of f..,lrCs by 2023

viii. 'i'o soli, ;'ror financial suppcrt from GOK through budget allocati^n L; ?0Zi
ix. To adhere to leqal, ethical and effective communication standards D\ 202J

c) Key Management and other key information.

C\ AryDA day to day management is under the following key departments and the key managenrent personnel
who held office during the fnancial year ended 30b June, 2022and who had direa frduciary responsibility were:

- Chief Exec"lne fficei'
- Head of Technical Services

- Head of Corporate SeMces

- Head of Finance

- Head of Procurernent

- Head of htemal audit.

- Head of Legal Services

d) Fiduciary Management
The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30h June 2022 andvit'w
had drrea fiduciary responsibifity were:

No. Desbnation
Chief Exeolive Officer
Head of Technical Services
Head o{ Corporate SeMces
Head of Frnance
Head of Proorement
Head of lnternd audit
Head dLegd Servi-s

Narne

Erg. lvlartmTsrna
Eng. David Kanui
Ms. FaEna C,akuria

CPA Stephen Kiwva
Mr. Stanslls.[ra
CPA Harnari [nrazb
Ifs Mry Okirna

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

YI
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e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements
The ultimate oversight authority of CMTVDA is exercised by the Board of Directors. To ensure that
good corporate govemance and that effectiveness is enhanced in this process, the Board of Directors
have established three committees:
i) Finance and administration Committee
ii) Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
iii) Technical, Planning and Development Committee
iv) Assets Management Committee

0 Entity Headquarters

Coast Water Works Development Aqency
MikindaniSkeet
Off Nknrmah Road
F.O Errcx 9041i -B01OiJ

MOMBASA

g) Entity Contacts

fEL:041-231523tt
FA.X:M1-231M71
EMAI L : info@cwwda.go. ke

h) Entity Bankers

KCB Bank

Treasury Square
P.O. Box 90254, 80100
MOMBASA

Co-operative Bank
Digo Road

P.O. Box 86i.''i9 - 3rrioc

MOMBASA

ConsolirJated Bank o{ Kenya
Nkrumah Road
P.O Box

Hfi8ASA

i) lndependentAuditors
fudibr Gereral
Annrversary Tovers
lniversitv Way

P.O. Box 30084{0100 GPO
}tAlROEt

vll
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I

j) PrincipalLegalAdvisor
The Attomey General

State Law Of[rce

Harambee Avenue

P. O. Box 40112-00200
City Square
NAIROBI

l

I

l

I

rl

I

l

ll
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2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following Directors were in office as at 30ur June 2022wtren the financial year under review

l

.,1

l

NAME POStTtoN OPERATIONS

HON . OMAR IDD BOGA

Chairman Effective
from

26a February 2021
Non-Executive

?

JILLO ALEX KASSE

Director

Up to 8 February 2022
Non-Executive

HIASIMON

Up to 8 October 2021

Director

Non-Executive

MWALIMU DIGORE KITAMBI

Up to 8 February 2022

Director Non-Executive

I

lx
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HIDAYA KASSI M MBWANA

Director

Up to 8 February 2022

Non-Executive

MARTIN TSUMA

Chief Executive Officer

From24 march.2021

Executive

PS NATIONAL TREASURY- FRESIA KAMAU Director
Non-Executive

STATE CORPORATIONS .CHRISOLOGAS
MAKOKHA Director Non-Executive

PS MINISTRY OF WATERAND SANITATION..
DANIEL KIHARA Dhector

Non-Executive

tl

i

l

i

x
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3. KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM

During lhe 2021 '2022 financial period, the following officers held key management positions

Name of the Staff Qualifications

Mr. Martin Tsuma-- Ag.CHtEF EXECUTTVE OFFTCER

Effective 24u llarch 2021

MTech. Sustainable Energy
Engineering

o Bachelor of Technology
(Production Engineering)

. Registered Eng.- EBK

. Certified Energy Manager-AEE
o Member-IEEE
. Corporate Member -lEK

a

Mr. Stephen Kivuva --- DEPUTY D IRECTOR FINANCE

o BBA-Finance and Accounting
. CPA-K

Simon Charoh --- DEPUTY DTRECTORMr

HR&ADMINISTRATION o Masters of Business Administration
(Shategic Management)

. Bachelor of Arts (Human Resource
Management)

. Diploma in Human Resource
Management

- IHRM

Ms. Mary Okioma - DEpUTy DTRECTOR
CORPORATION SECRETARY

. Bachelor of Law

. Diploma in Law

Practicing Certificate 2020

xl
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Ms. Fatma Gakuria -DEPUTY DIRECTOR CORPORATE
COMMUNICATIONS

o Masters of Business Administration -
Marketing

o Bachelor of Education
. Diploma in Management public

Relations Option

Mr, Hamadi Mwazito -----DEPUTY DIRECTOR
INTERNAL AUDIT

o Bachelor of Business Administration
(Accounting & Finance)

.CPAK

xll
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4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

I am delighted to report the performance of CWWDA in the annual reports and Financial Statements for the
year ended 30th June, 2022.

Water assets and infrastructure
Under its core mandate of infrastructure development, CV1MDA has been recording an upward movement in
the water infrastructure with development increasing year by year from the preceding period in the last 5
years.

During the year under review the water assets under Development increased from Kshs 12,468,661,423 in
the pevious year to Kshs 13 949,61i.257 witi rnost proiet:tr !;:,ving not been ccrffied.
As he water and saniiatrur water prolects cari.e to an end in i'.et;ember 2019, UWWDT,'uritarkxl.on more
prclects under Water and Sanitation Devclooment pi'cr,'ar,ri! lWSl-tP). The WSDP is undertc!.i;ig various
projects which include Baricho Lot 3, Baricho Replacemenr tsoreholes, Nyali prpeline, Baricho Wellfield
Protecuun, Second Baricho-Nakl.rhrrrn' ; rpeline and Mwacire Dam Transn:rssion lines.

Revenue
The year under review also recorded a slight Decrease in total revenue billed amounting to Kshs. 787 ,3?.O,B4O
due to implementation of water Act 2016 where Administrative fees was discontinued. The Agency Collected
ab totalof Kshs. 564,182,220 ftom the sale of bulk water to the water service providers. Further disbursemerrts
from the Govemment to subsidize on recunent and development expendihrres amounted to Kshs. 445.552,703
and Kstrs 1,121,825,7 48 Respectrveiy.

Compliance
On complidnce he agency complied with all guidelines and laws applicable wifrin its mandate and otrei.

applicable laws including deducting and remitting of all statutory deductions as well as prepadng financial
statements to the relevant agencies. ln addition, CWWDA also complied witr other guidelines from state
agencies and circdars on he same.

Performance
Under its mandate, C\ A/VDA covem six coast counties with an estimate area oi 83,630 kmz and iyith it an
estimated airrent popuhtim for the region being 4.4 million. Water demand has continued to rise with the
cunent demand for he region estmated at 329.306 mldtl. Wb the annent water production fmm all sources
being 180,000ms/day he gap is evrdence and fris is a daity concem to us as he Agenry with the mandate of
ensurng adequate water infrastructure h the regim. h consultatim with otrer stakeiplders the Agency also
has to slrategize on provitJing infrastructure hr g$ped water consklering tlnt arently the totd populatkn thd
is served wi$r piped water is approximately 55% or 2.405 Millbn.
During the year b\e Agency thrugh its frrn ffier ScheflEs produced 46,760.018 m3 of water. lt was able tro

ti! he Water Service hoviders 39.247 .52$n3. This indcated a l{on. Revenue Water level of 16%.

xlll
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Corporate Governance:
The Board's corporate governance structure and practices are in line with the guidelines issued by Mwongozo
and other applicable regulations. At a Board level CWWDA has a non-executive Chairman and the Director's

except the CEO who is in charge of day to day management of the Agency. The key role of the Board is to
give direction and address policy issues. This clarity ensures the Board and management perform their roles
within specifi c parameters.

All the members of the Board have committed themselves to observing ethical behavior and practices in all the
Br.'ard's businesses. ln addition, all the me,trbe rs of the Board have gLlne through various Governance trainirrg

to enable them undertake their roles and mandate with information.

The Boarci has constiir.ite,l ;.ppropriate mmmittees which are the Humar Resource , , 'i .i;,lministrati<,,:,

Technrcal a,". F.sset Devci'", tent and the AuJit anci Risx Contmittee. Ali the a ,aret rncetir,gg . scheduled
anC are held on quartprl) *'-;s. Ad hoc board meetings are algo neld whenever necessan, i-r::/ '.riitt specific

agarda.

Stakeholda Management
CV1 ryDA has vanous types of stakeholders who perform different roles complimentary to it. Some of these are:

the various water institutions hi,:e WASREB, WARA, Water Appeals Board, Water Services Provi,lers, Water
Services Trust Fund, Community Based Organizations (CBO) the Hospitality lndustry players among others.

Appreciation
ln conclusion, I take this opportunity to thank my colleagues in the Board for supporting me in providing

leadership since I took over the leadership of this Agency as the Chairman. Their commitment contributed
imrnensety to our performance and being able to focus on the fuhne together.
I also corrrnerrd managemerd ard slaff br mrkirE lirelessly to acfiieve the level of service gn*vth that we harre

witnessed. I am mnfident that hey witl continuaBy spare no effort to attain and surpass tte brgets set br tr\e

new financial year. I recognize the support from the community at large and all other stakeholders for supporting

and doing business with us.

I also wish to thank our Govemment and Development Parhers for their continued support in building his
and in process impacting positively on lives and communities in our region

K ARINGA
CHAIRHAN

xlv
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5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Execution of our mandate
CT MDA mandate is implemented principally through two roles which are to develop and maintain water
infrastructure and management of the Bulk Water Supply unit which produces water'for sale to the Water
Service Providers namely Mombasa, Kilifi-Mariakani, MatinOi, Kwale and Tavevo Water Companies.

The assels development is under the technical unit which plays its role in various ways including:
a) operations and maintenance of Bulk water systemsin the Region.
b) Overall Planning Design and Construction for capital improvemint projects, facility improvements and

replacements for existing systems.
c) Preparation of Terms of Reference, Rfp's and render Documents,
d) Projects' Supervision and reporting.
e) Provision of Technical Assistance to the CS, other departments, WSps and Counties.

The Bulk Unit (established under the technical department) is responsible for the operation and maintenance
of the bulk system which comprise Baricho, Marere, Tiwi and Mzima schemes, Cunentty ttre gun Unit is semi-
autonomous with ofrices at Mazeras and headed by acting Managing Director, Tne oulk-unit is budgetarily
supported by CVIMDA.

The Operation and Maintenance (O & M) of the Bulk Water Supply Unit (BWSU) involves patrolling of the
systems' pipelines, attending to leaks and bursts, seMcing and'iepair of electrical installations, bul-k meter
reading and bulk water billing, servicing and repair of bulk witer meters. ln undertaking these activities, BWSU
11{-!e .to 

effectively serve the Water Service Providers (WSPs) as well as the Commrnlt11 g.reo Organizations.
(CBos)

The water production under the below schemes has increased by a good margin since 2005 as shown by
table 2 below.

Table No 2. Production of water by different schemes

The demand for water in the coast region is yet to be met despite the increase in Water production from these
schemes. Some of the reasons that contribute to this scenario include aged infrastructure that requires frequent
repairs and maintenance, non -revenue water as well as the length oitime that it takes to complete prolects
when compared to the rise in demand for water,

2021-2022 2,534,000 14,609,000 2,257,654 27,359,364 46,760,019
2020-2021 2,902,535 14,619,192 2,062,195 25,749,935 45,332,737
2019-2020 3,441,993 14,760,000 2,394,199 23,193,100 43,779,191
2018-2019 2,399,000 14,473,729 1,976,911 23,363,930 42,112,570

xv
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Non-Revenue Water:
This is water lost from the infrastructure which could be dilapidated and from commercial sources like faulty
meters, theft of water, wrong billing, estimated billing etc,
The Agency has been struggling with this menacelince its inception, A Lot of effort has been put to reduce

this NRW since it impacts on the revenue side as well as water coverage and supply sufficiency, Every year
hundreds of millions of shillings go to waste as a result of this.

Revenue collection
Coast Water Works Development Agency has had challenges with collection of its revenues that emanate from
the bills generated and delivered to the WSPs. There has 6een a reluctance by these WSps to pay in full their
bills' For a v.ery long tim,e-the efficiency level has been way below the standard set by WASREB of 90yo and
above. ln addition, the WSPs have not paid the administraiion charges causing the Aiency a lot of concerns
due to the high operational costs which constitute over 9670 of the reienue collected, Other costs for bulk water
production are left with funding gap.
Efforts to involve the Counties have yielded minimal results. The table below shovrrs the revenue collection

efficiency over the years.

Working with Stakeholders

Stakeholders play an important role in our ability to deliver on our strategy and meet our customer expectations.
Wc continue to engage with them, and are committed to developing-ind maintaining healthy rel'ationships.
These include various minislries in the government, Counties, 

-various 
governnient agencies, private

organizations, media houses, financial institutions, suppliers and the general puOtic. CWWDA has maintained
good working relationships with all stakeholders and witt endeavor to do so in future.

Table 3: Revenue collection trend For the Last Five Years

2021-2022 7,512,494 150,249,990

2020-2021 7,227,614 144,552,290

2019-2020 6,799,900 135,979,000

2018-2019 7,016,125 140,322,500

2017-2018 5,980,926 119,616,520

2021-2022 787,320,940 56/,192,220 72Yo
2020-2021 784,271,796 521,299,333 66%
2019-2020 849,760,569 490,369,595 58o/o

2018-2019 697,863,700 580,415,946 83o/o

2017-2018 715,296,960 627,900,970 880/o

xvl
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Appreciation
ln conclusion, I thank the Government of Kenya for its confidence in our ability to execute our strategy to ensure
efficient and economical prcvision of water and sewerage services within our area of jurisdicii.rn. i also thank
the board and the employees for their commitment and dedication in delivering on our mandate and our
development partners who have continued to support our expansion of water and sanitation infrastructure.

MARTI

AI!.CH|EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

X\rII
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6. STATEMENT OF CWWDA PERFORMANCE AGAINST PRE.DETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY
2021-2022

Coast Water Works Development Agency has nlne strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for
the FY 201812019-202212023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

i. To recruit and retain at least 80% highly qualified staff by 2023

ii. To increase water production tci 90% and water coverage by 80% by 2023

iii. To improve ICT infrastructure ard services frun 40% to 80% by 2023

iv. To improve water coveraqe from 56% to 80o/oby 2023
,. -r i1 img'trg',i ';:rerlsg collectiorr from 60% tc 90% by 2C23

vi. To reduce ?i,rri'nlisn cost from 18% to 15o/oby'2]i'2.?

vji. to create ali.cnative source of iunds by 2C23

viii. To solicit for financial s;pport from GOK throrrgh brrdoe : :llocation by 2023

it. To adhere to legal, ethical and effective communication standarijs by 2023

CVy|WDA develops its annual work plans based on the above nrne pillars. Assessment of the Board's
performance against its annualwork plan is done on a quartedy basis. The Agency achieved its performance

targets set for the FY 202112022 period for rts nine strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

S/No. Performa nce Criteria Category Unit of lWeight
measure |{nt

I

I

Status ln
Year
(FY

2021i?zi

A

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP & DISCIPUNE
DISCIPLINE

4.1 ADsorplton ol Allocateo Funos % 't 95.70

LZ ADsorptpn oI Extemally MoDrlEeo Fums to 3 21

4.3 AInA

Pending Bills

Sub Total

Kshs.(M) 2 616

A4 ol
lo 3 0.80

10

B

SERI'ICE DELryEFNT

B.'l lmplernenbtion of Citizens' Service Delivery Charter % 4 90

8.2 3usiness Process ReEngineering ot
lo 3 i,l/A

8.3 Resolution of PuHic Cornplahts otlo 3 100

YYeights Sub Totd 10

CORE TA}IDAIE

xvllt
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995

ol
to

%c

nce Criteria Category

programmes/projects ("Big.Four'' initiatives, Vision 2030
Projects, Post COV|D.I9 Recovery Strategies and Plans and

Programmes/Projects) aligned to SDGs, Agenda 2063 and SPS

c.1 Prolect Completion Rate

C.? 9am and Wahr'r natment hs"!
abilitateo

c.3 ombasa Water Distribution Works for Nortn Mainland

fe:'ni vlon<siLot 1A Construcled

Mainland North (NyaliArea Phase 1)

lmprovement of Water Services lmplemelted

(
55

55

141

S/No. Unit of
measure

IVeight
'r%i)

Status ln
Year
(FY

2021t22)

2 5

c.4 ot
to 5

c.5 Makamini Dam and Treatment Plant Phase I

Sonstructed

o/
to 5 15

c.6 Watamu Town Water Distribution Network Lot 2A

ConsSucted

olto 7 95

% E

c.8

frwi Boreholes Rehabilftated and Dritled

Water Supply to Dongo Kundu Special Economic Zone
(SEZ) Phase ll Implemented

0

c.9 Mwadre Dam Water Transrnission Pipelines

lmplemented

ot
to

otlo 5 10

c.10 otlo 5 10

c.11

Utwacfie Dam Water Treatment Plant (W1-P)

lmplemented

3aricho Protection Works lrnplemented ol
to I 45

c.12 Second Barbho Kakuyuni Pipeline lmpbnrented ol
m I 10

WeighB Sub total 60

D lmplementation of Presidential Elirectives % 2 86

E Access to Governrnert Procurement

OpporUnittes (AGFO)

Kishs(M) 3

t- Promotion of Local Conted in Procuremelrt Kshs(M) 2 346

cRoss-cuTnr{G
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S/No. Performance Criteria Category Unit of
measure

Weight

f/")
Status ln
Year
(FY

20211221

G.1 Asset Management ot
to 1 90

G.2 Youth lntemships/lndustrial Attachments

Aoprenticeshios

No. 1 114

G.3 Sompetence Development

)isability Mainstreaming

% 2 31

G.4 oh I 98.75

100

10('

99.98

G,5 Mainstreaming ot
to 1

(vt :rio[ of Alcoho]and Drug Abuse ot
l{t I

G.7 , r'i?n of HIV lnfections and f,lonConrnr"lnicable n/o'', 
, 1

G.8 Values and cf Governance o/o 2

G.9 M ot
to 1

G.10 Prevention Yo 2

100

100

sub total

OverallTotalWe
13

100

G.6

95
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

lntroduction

The agency is committed to maximizing business performance, generating appropriate levels of stakeholde/s
value and financial retums, and sustaining the growth and success of CWWDA.
Effective governance is achieved through a combination of strong process and structures, underpinned by the
right values and culture. The principles of corporate governance a:'e contained in the Constitution and The
Pul,lic fficer Ethics Act. 2003 among otrer guidelines. CWWDA is in compliance with he govemance tenets
of the recently developed 'Code of Governance for Government Owned Entities', Ivlwongozo. CMMDA is
committed to ensuring compliarr,,. with the ,.'err'r.r;1s of Wi.ter Act 2016 among other regulal ry and
su perviso, 1, Corporate Governance r,.,qui :'en ients

ln conducting business in accordance with thesi, " :jectives. the Agency seeks to ersure that CWWDA is
pupeliy marr.,ged tc protect and enhance stakekr$r; iriterests, ai:ci fint CVfl/dD;.r, its Directors, oftrcers arid
employees operel. in an appi'opriate environment of corporatc governance.

The Board has in place a framework for govemrng CWWDA which includes adopting intemal contros, risk
management processes and corporate governance p'licies and practices, designed to promote responsible
management and ethical conduct.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board and management
The Board provides overa[ strategic guidance for CWflDA and effective oversight of management.
Responsibility lor the govemance of CWWDA, including establishing and monitoring key performance goals,
rests with tlrc Board. The Board monitors the operatronal performarrce and firxancial posititm orf tre agency
throrlgh management ref.rtrF, perftrrmance crntracts pnmrement dan-s as wefi as the aurited fnancial
reports.

The Board Charter articulates the Board's roles and responsibilities, its membership and operation clearly
stating which responsibilities may be delegated to committees orto management. Specific responsbilities luve
been reserved by the Board in key areas of strategy, governance, executive appointments and financial
approvals. The Board has established Four standing mmmittees to assist in performing its resporsibiFties by
discussing in detailparticular issues and making recommendations to the Board and these committees operate
under specific terms of reference.

The CEO has the responsrbility of managng he day-to{ay affars of CWWDA in tine with he Board-approved
corporate dan, the co'rporate strategy and pdioes.

Board Size, Compooition and Appoinbnent
The structure of C1iVWDA Board starts with the Board of Directors who are appointed by the Cabiret Seuetary
and all independent except the CEO. The Cabinet Secretabs in both the National Treasury and the Ministry
of water and sanitatkxt are repesented n h€ Bmrd by heir futy appomH rprninees. The sbte Corporatnn
Advisory Comnfttee (SCAC) is also represented in 0re board.

The Board b wdlcornposed in terms of rage ard diversity of skf,s, tnoryeOge, ard experience in varnr.rs
seclors wtlcfi rnakes t eftdive h provifg an appropriate bahnce hr he otensfuht of Sre Boads rnardab.
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Separation of Roles and Responsibilities
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and non-executive
directors remain distinct and separate which ensures a balance of power of authority and provides for checks
and balances such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision making. Their roles have been
documented and are expected to be independent and free from conflict upon appointment. SCAC is responsible
for reporting to the Board on the evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, Board and committees.

The Chairman provides overall leadership to the BoarC without limiting the principles of collective responsibility
for Board's decisions. The Charrrnan builds an effective board and sets the board agenda in consultation with
he Chief Executive fficer and ensures effective communication to stakeholders.

ihe Board \J(;S rt.1t consider the Chicf Executive Officer to be i' 'ependent ,. tus is an exeu,.,tive role. All
.1iie"'lcrs are lioi; e.<ecutive and are independert oi managenrent. ncir.roies,incluce .:ppointing the ilEO arri
establishing i i r,. , €work fcr the delegation of authcriiy ancl ensule succession ll;,: , ,i ,, for ttre Cf O and the
senor managen-.-rd. 

'lheir 
mairr iole is therefcre tc give oversqht arrd strategy diicction and moi'ritor the

progress of strategy implenentation ensuring it i^-dc:"e vriti'in the risk appetite and control fremework that is
set out by the Board.

The CEO rs respor;sible to the Board and takes the overall responsibility for the management of the affairs of
CWWDA. The CEO recommends the sirategy to the Board and implements it and makes operational decisruns.
The CEO further ensures appropriate and timely information flows within the Board, its committees and
management.

Board Committees and Responsibilities
The Board delegates certain functions to rrcll-stnrclured coffinittees hr{ without abdicatrng its own
resfionsilffties. The Boa{d has developed a r:ommitten sfrrctrre Utd assists in tre exeottirn of its dutbs.
poters and authonties. Eadt Committee is guided by the Commfrtee Charterfferms of Rebrence, whicfr
ouUines its responsibilities as mandated by the Board.

The Comminees are appropriately constituted drawing rnembership frorn annngst tre Board rnembers witr
approprfate skills and experience. The Chairman of the Board, management and extemal parties/advisors are
required to attend the committee meetings onty by invitation. The mrnmittees are expected to operate
hansparently, ensure fuli disclosure to the Board and conduct themsefues within the rules and procedures set
out by the Board. Matters deliberated by the Committees are presented to the Board by the respective chairman
during he next Board meetrng.

Conffi oflnterest, Code ofConduct and Ethics
The Drectors ard employees of CWWDA harre a fiduciary duty to act honeslfy and in tre best interest of fre
Agerrcy. Bt sifless transactions wih all parttes must be canied out d arm's lergth and wrth integr*y. fhe Board
provides effecttve leadership based on ethicd foundatjon and ensures all deliberatrons. decisions and actions
are based on the Boards'core values underpinnirg good governance.
The Boad has pt variars ,ne;rsues in pbce b ensure that frere b no curfu of interest armngst rts diredors
and stafi. The Board has put in phce mnudbn prerentim dan and Code of Condrrd & Ehkx Pdicies trat
tirds boh Ute eredors atd $e emptqrces. A dedaatbn o{ interest is s€ned by berd membea ffire
delibectiq m varixls matbrs exrg te year, under review CYVIYDA ctrduded variorrs tr[ning b t*edors
rd stafion e0$cs and inEgtty.
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Accountability & Audit /Control Environment Management
a) lnternalAuditors

CUfl/VDA has an interriai audit function which has the role of providing independent s;i-'.i objective assurance to
the Audit and Risk committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management framework, financial
reporting processes, internal control systems and compliance

The annual intemal audit plan, which is approved by the committee of lhe board is developed using a risk-
based approach and is driven by the risk framework, risk profiie and governance principles. The head of the
irtemal audit function reports direcfly to the committee Chairman, witr an adminisfative reporting line to tl.re
Chief Executive Officer. This ensures that internal audit is given the rndependence that is required.

The Manager, lrrternal Audit & I:{it.k ;cpons to i,,o .'ammiftee meelirg on progress against thu at)rr.'?. illern.rl
audit plan, auditfndrngs and recommendatinn: .,,' I ihe status cf management actions. :ilre Board hasqualifud
staff wno cairy out the internal audit tunctinn anc pi*ent reports on L:c.r':ipiiancs. 

'f 
he Audit and Risx Uomnrttee

is composed 0' nci':-pxe,,i.:tive directors

b) lnternal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has the responsibility of identifying internal risk exposures and developing measures to mitigate
against the identified risks. The Board reviews and monitors the development and implementation of mternal
controlsystems and risk managenrent systems using various approach including through policies arxJ manuals.

c) Relationship with Stakeholders

As an organrzation, CIIIYVI)A appreck*es lhat shkefnlrler oerceotion aftcts the omanizatiom reoutatbn and
may affed rts atility to effectively undertake its mandate. Therefore, tre Board strtves to achieve an appropriate
balance between its various stakeholders in the best interest of the organization by taking into account their
legitimate interest and expectations in decision making.

The Board values the importance of complete, timely, transparent and effective communication with its
stakehoHers for buildirg and maintaining their trust and confidence by providing regular inbrmation on its
performance, activrties and addressing ttreir concerns while taking into consideration hgal and strategic
considerations.

CWWDA has developed a Corporab Communications Strategy which encompasses intemal & extrnal
conrrunication, arstorner service and pubfic relations. The main avenres for connnunication are trrough press
releases. slakehoBer bnrrns and publicatkms in print and social media. and annual repoG and financial
statennnts. The Board has contirued to encurrage electronic conrmtmicaton tlrough publishrg doanments
in the corporate website and has endeavored to ensure that the webslte is hrghly interactive aM contains all
tip rdevant infornntion.

Adfilnaly, fte Board has dedbated stafi to deal wifr compbints ard prtfrc relatims efficienty ard effectvety.
The B€rd has an estsblished medranism of receiving, resolving ard giving bedback on conplainb refened
b il by its gakehoHers The Board subnits qtlarterty repoG b he Cornnsssbn d Adn*ristrative Justice on
he compk trs handkrg and rnarugernent
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I

d) Annual Report and Accounts

The financial reports for CV1MDA accounts are audited by the Auditor-Generalwhose role and responsibilities
are defined under the Constitution of Kenya. C'rr.ryVDA has in the past prepared and submitted its annual
reports and financial statements to the auditor general for review as required. ln addition, quarterly reports are
prepared and submitted to the relevant agencies as per existing guidelines.

MARTIN
CHIEE E[F-t r.t]IVE oEFTCER

. 'i I
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8. II'IANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Revenue

PUlg^!!. lnancial year ending 30r' June 2\ry)_c$twDA generated total revenue amounting to Kshs.
2,586,293,048 against an expenditure of Kshs, 1,6g7,594,7gg

Detai! Kshs Yo

Sale of Water 787,320,940 32Yo
GoK De 1,139,469,959 41Yo
GoK Recurrent 445,552,703 18o/o

Other 214,949,547 9Yo
Total 2,596,293,049 100o/o

REVENUE

r Sale of Water

r GoK Development

r GoK Recurrent

r Other Receipts
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Expenditure

The total expenditure for year under review was Kshs. 1,687,594,788 with bulk of the same being utilized for
operational Expenses, Use of Goods and Services and Projects among others as indicated below

Expenditure Kshs. Yo

Use of Goods and Services 374,640,294 22Yo

Remuneration of Directors 11,207,909 0.7Y0

Employees Cost 232,431,421 14o/o

General Expenses 31,316,900 2Yo

Operational Expenses 706,937,376 41Yo

Project Costs 280,811,774 17o/o

Finance Cost 50,249,323 3o/o

Total 1,687,594,799 100o/o

EXPEN DITURE

r Use of Goods and Services

r Remuneration of Directors

r Employees Cost

r General Expenses

r Operational Expenses

r Project Costs

I Finance Cost
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Detailed Utilization of Revenue
a) Projects expenses
During the year under review the CWWDA undertook several projects under its Master plan as 1,1ell as other
projects that became necessary during period,
The projects that were undertaken were under different programmes depending on the source of funds as well
as the key purpose of the project. Some projects were factored in the budg;t while others were continuing
project from the previous period. Some of the projects were completed while others are ongoing and will bi
completed in the coming financialperiods,

The table below shows the project expenditure as per each category respectively:

Project Name Cost(Kshs) o/o

Lamu Projects 90,608,179 34o/o

Smalldams and Pans 4,632,632 2o/o

Drought mitigation 67,396,990 24%
Equalization 3,369,409 1o/o

Water For Schools 994,034 0.03%
Taita Projects 34,243,294 4o/o

Dongo Kundu 30,502,544 21o/o

Cross County Projects 39,959,244 19Yo
Universal Health Care 9,'106,559 3Yo

Total 280,911,774 100Yo

PR ECT COSTS

r Lamu Projects

r Small dams and Pans

r Drought mitigation

r Equalization

r Water For Schools

r Taita Projects

r Dongo Kundu

r Cross County Projects

r Universal Health Care
0.03o/o
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S/No Proiect Name Funding Programme
1 Garsen/Shell/Hamesa

Water Proiect

Allocated (Kshs)

8,000,000.00

2 Dibe Galili Water Proiect Gok

GoK

8,000,000.00
3 GoK

GoK

a) Cross County Projects 2021-2022

The Agenry lmplemented Several Projects in Lamu County during the financialyear

Gubani-Furaha Water 8,000,000,00

4

6

5 i Sero Boretoi+

Furaha Borehole I
GoK 8,000, riS.;ir)

GoK 3,000.00U."i,

Go14 I n,4nnini I

I Handam GoK 000 .UtJ

Gcn 10,000,000.00

b) Tana River Project 2021-2022

_l
I Badaa Vr'ater Pan

S/No Project Name Funding
Programme

Allocated (Kshs)

1 Garsen Tcnrn Boretuile GoK 9,4m,711.00
2 Kone borehob dd[tng and

equipping
CroK 4,789,541.40

3 Hdi borehole drinng and GoK

u

Onlih borehde drilling and GoK

4,898,135.00

4 4,982,135_04

5 Tufu Water Pioino GoK 2,811,576.m
6 Rehabilitation of water pipes

Garsen Tonn
GoK 1,805,349.00

7 Shauri Moyo borehole and
prprng

GoK 13,926,368.40

I lufikirduri Borehob ard Pirrn GoK 13,657,129.05

I Cmsfuctlm of Gafuru steel
tank 50m3

GoK I

I

6,717,270.N
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S/No Project Name Funding
Proqramme

Allocated (Kshs)

lmprovement of water supply
works to Faza Sub County
Hospital in Faza Ward in Lamu

County.

1 GoK 8,500,000.00

2 GoK 8,000,000.00

3

+
L

c) Universa! Health Care Water Projects 2021-2022

Hoia Hospital Borehole and
Piping in Galole Constituency in

Tana River

Ngao Sut Countv rkx,iorial

Borehole ln L:rsen Construei,cy
GoK li 000,000.00

GoK r",500,ii00.00

in'Iana River

Itllbuta Heatth Cenfe lVater
Prije;. in Lokini Constiuency in

Momoasa Cot,nty.

d) Drought Mitigation Projects 2021-2022

SNo Project Narne Funding
Programrne

Amount
Allocated

1 Kwale County GoK

2 Kilifi County GoK 17,300,000.00

7,200,000.003 Taita Taveta County GoK

4 Tana River County CioK 16,500,000.00

5 Lamu County GoK 15,300,000.00

6 Supply and delivery of plastic

tanks
GoK 9,000,000.00

7 lnstalhtion of base and
plumtlinq works

C'oK 4,025.000.00
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Operational Expenses
This is a major expenditure that the Agency incurred during the financial period with the main expenditure under
this category being the electricity for water production in Baricho plant.
These Expenses constitute 40o/o of the expenses incurred by the organization Out of total amount spent is on
Production Electricity that has continued to skyrocket over time, The power is used at Baricho Treatment Works
and The Tiwi Borehole stations.
During 

lhe 
year the Agency received Kshs,214M from the Conditional Liquidity Support Grant to pay expenses

incurred during the Covid-19 Pandemic Period. During that time Water Servite Providers were unbbb to pay
for their Bills and so was Coast Water. Hence the National Government in consultation with the World Bani<
partnered to clear most pending bills obtained during that time. A total of Kshs.82M was incurred during the
financialyear

Operational Expenses Kshs. o/o

Electricity 511,979,621 72o/o

Water user charges 21J22,939 3Yo

Baricho Repairs 17,030,000 2o/o

Chemical& other related materials 6,434,550 1Yo
Maintenance of Water Assets 67,961,036 1}Yo
Conditional Su Grant 82,431,536 120/o
Total 706,937,376 100o/o

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

r Electricity

r Water user charges

r Baricho Emergency Repairs

r Chemical & other related
materials

r Maintenance of Water Assets

: Conditional Liquidity Support
Grant Expenses

72%

1ZYo
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Table below show the trend of power bill over the last five years which shows progressive increase in the trend
with the last six years.

Cost of power bill for the last six years.

Year Kshs

2016-2017 356,550,190

2017-2018 390,799,466

2018-2019 411,437,359

2019-2020 448,155,747

2020-2021 497,029,745

2021-2022 511,878,621

POWER COSTS

600,000,000

500,000,000

400,000,000

300,000,000

200,000,000

100,000,000

0

2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020_2021 2021_2022

FINANCIAL YEAR

+110/o +3o/o

+90/o

(t,
-(/,
5
F
z,
=o
=

+10o/o
+5o/o
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Kshs
Salaries and 193,759,994
Staff Leave Allowance 2,911,749
Other Staff Allowances 26,824,090

3,733,574
Total 232,431,422

Staff Costs

The summary of staff expenses is given by table below

STAFF COSTS

r Salaries and Wages

r Staff Leave Allowance

s Other Staff Allowances

r Gratuity

Use of Goods and Services
This Category has a total of 31 line items or expenses that the Agency incurs, The expenditures constitu le 2Oo/o
of the total costs that the Agency incurs. Notable among the-expenses is a provision of depreciation that
consumes 66%. Further this Category covers administrative expenses that cut across all the departments and
a myriad of Agency programmes like cross cutting issues training etc,

NOTE 9 Use of Goods and Services

Te , Fax, lnternet, Courier & Email 3,372,226
Travelli and accommodation- local 34,420,035
Advertisi &Pu 5,004,921
Trade show and Exhibition 650,760

xxxll
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KRA Tax Assessment 30,391,009

fees & related

Bank charges

Monitorin and Fvaluation 1 2,C50,1 10

Audit fees .' ,i5,520

Mairrtenance expenses_ '- vehicle': g t2r,g65

of otfrce furniture & *.ir.,ipment 1,c',1,959

of buildinqs & stations 5,214,930

office 863,499

Covid -19 Expense 2,104,330

Depreciation 236.643,630

Assets and liabilities
The net balance of CWWDA has contirued to yow orer the years as CWWDA continue to endeavor to meet
the ever risu4 demand for water. The bulk of fite rrcn+unent assets ustitute te water infrastruclure wtrih
the receivabhs constihrte the brggest percentage of tle urrent asseB.

a) Current assets
under orrent assets, he receivables hke he highest percentage (93%) of he assets cost as $rown by table
below. Under inventories machinery, pipes and fittings are held for continuous repair for our assets.

Current Assets

lnventones

Kshs. ottn

1%

Receivables 4,ffi2,727,078

1J%.071.272

78%

Cash & Cash Equivalent 21%

Total 5,806,948,550 100%

World Water Day 1 ,253, 100

31,000

7,263,453

Laboratory expenses

General office supplies

3,030,096

Hospitality 1,128,880

Fuel & Lubricant 8,313,651

8,290,608

287,958

TOTAL 374,64A,2U
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CURREN T ASSETS

r lnventories

r Receivables

r Cash & Cash Equivalent

c)Current liabilities

[!er lnis category Accumulated loan interest and General Creditors are the main components as at 30r, June
2022. CWVUDA has not paid any interest for any of its loans. This is attributable to the iailure by WSps to pay
for their bulk water bills and administration fees in full. A summary of the current liabilities is given Oy ta'Of6
below

Cunent Liabilities Kshs o/o

General Creditors 2,277,339,226 99,6%

Paymaster General 3,117,944 0.2Y0

Ukulima and Other Deductions 4,406,923 0.20/,

TOTAL 2,294,962,993 100o/o

b) Non-current assets
ln this category Work ln Progress (WlP) takes 42.80/0 of the total cost and property, plant and equipment taking
the balance of 57 .20/o The WIP is attributable to various projects that are onlgoing'at different stages. Durin!
the year under review three project were transferred to Fixed Assets having been iompleted and handed over
to the Agency.
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CUR RENT LIABILITIES

r GeneralCreditors

r Paymaster General

r Ukulima and Other
Deductions

d) Non .Cunent liabilities
C\A /VDA has one major.non-current liability, which is the World Bank (WB) loan and AFD Loan, the agency
does not have any other long term liabilities.

e) Solvency, going concern and liquidity

As at 30t' June2022, C\ AruDA had a strong solvency base with assets valued at Kshs 1g,l12p14,g4g and
liabilities with value of Kshs. 1 6,592,389,052 hence a net assets worth of Kshs 3, 160,4 2S,T};O and thii gives a
good indication of a going concern status for the agency

The current ratio (3) is equally very strong as current assets cover the current liabilities above the minimum
professional requirement of 2, However, in practice, liquidity has been a challenge due to the huge pending
bills from WSPs which are not performing.

Quality assurance and value for money
High quality standards are taken very seriously even as CWWDA undertakes its mandate, All effort is made
to ensure the projects are designed, implemented and maintained by applying strict standards that are
applicable in all aspects. lnspection teams composed of officers with relevant skills and experience are
constituted and inspection criteria developed at all stages of the projects.
This ensures that there is value for money for the resources that are assigned to different task.

For the bulk unit, laboratory tests are conducted regularly to ensure the water that is released to the consumers
is safe, ln addition, CWWDA also ensures that chlorine and other chemicals that are required are procured and
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tested within the applicable standards. As an agency, ue do also appreciate the fact that not allconsumers rely
entirely on our water and in this regard, CWWDA offers laboratory services to the members of the public wlro
would wish to check the status of the water they are consuming. CU/\ruDA has a monitoring and evaluation
team that regularly visits the WSPs to establish their compliance with the laid down procedurei and standards.
To maintain the water quality standards, CU ryDA also issues chlorine to WSPs to enhance the chlorination
process at the consumer level.
Non-revenue water

Non -Revenue water emanates from physical and commercial losses and is of big magnitude that demands
attention all the time. A lot of water is lost from the four schemes due to their leveli of dilapidation. The table
below show the level of NRW per scheme as at 30.6.2022,

Production(m3) 2,257,654 14,609,000 2,534,000 27,359,364 46,760,019
Sales(m3) '1,739,394 11,979,390 2,103,220 23,809J37 39,630,731
NRW(m3) 519,260 2,629,620 430,790 3,557,777 7,137,437
NRW(o/o) 23o/o 18Yo 170/ 13o/o 160/o
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7tl

b

Pictures bursts repairs that happen along our various water assets
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Compliance with statutory requirements
During the financialyear under review CWWDA complied with all the statutory requirements that as
applicable. This includes deducting and submitting all taxes to Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA), NSSF
deductions, NHIF and pension deductions among others. ln addition, CVVWDA p,epare.-{ a;rd submitted the
quarterly financial statements to the relevance agencies as provided for in the guidelines.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

introduction

Sustainable development is all about ensuring a better quality of life for everyone, now and for generations to
,:ome. This can be achieved throt-'+l the three gtai' ''; of sogal equity whi,,h recognizes the needs of r. , 1ryone,
n'dintenance cf stable leve6 of B-;nunlic groiltir:;r'J employmenl, and u.'rng natural resources p,..jl,:dy, *'l
whilst protecting ;nd if pcssihle enhancino, the u.nvironment Sustainable or ecnlogicat Ce,,.elopment is a
process oi uitange m which the exploihtion of resources, the cjirec,:oir of investmerrts, the onentation of
technolog:cal de ,eluprlreFl, and institutional change are ma.i; consistent with the iutir;l.as r.;-.ll aS present
needs.

Sustainability reqtlires continuous technological, ecolomical the social progress of continuous improvement
that respects the limits of the Earth's ecosystems, and meets the needs and aspirations of everyone for a better
quality of life, now and for future generations to come.

As an agency, CVVWDA is mmmitted to meeting our stakeholder's present and future requirements tlnough a
collaborative culture which provides the capability to provide services and knowledge alicwing systematic
dunge to hke phce whibt reinforcmg nrtttrafy desired social, economic and envbonmenEl outconns.
CWWDA recognzes the im'portanee C cond,Jcting operatic'ns in a rnanne'that !'neeh existing needs wtthor[
comprornising tle abiftty d ihe fufure generafion to meet their needs; herefore, it canbs out ib operations tr
a manner that ensures the economic life of the community in which it operates. h remains the policy of, the
agency tc ensure that activities meet and exceed the social, economtc and envronmental expectatkms of
stakeholders.

The agenry considers key aspects to be able to achieve its goal on the above. This is

(a) Our people. yalues ard processes:

(b) Stakeholder engagement;
(c) Protectingtheenvironrnent;and
(d) Corporate Social Responsibility and lnvestment.

Our Peopte Vdues and hocesses
The staff of CVWDA are the primary asset of the agency. CWWDA Srerefore recruils, retarns and invests in
UE best talent tn he market and also gives oppohrnity for rw coflters thrargh intemsirips and attacirnents.

Diversrty aod ESral Opportunig
The agency endearcG to preserve gender and o.ilhnal di\ersfy ir ur enrployee rnix and takes pride as an
eqd opporhnrty enplq,er br aI qualfnd persryts.
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Our Culture and Values
0ur vision of 'To be a world class water and sanitation infrastructure development agency

This describes who we are, what we stand for and what n-.akcs our culture distinctive. The staff and Directors
are committed in upholding our core values in the discharge of our mandate.
Employee Welfare
The agenry takes every effort to ensure that employees' well-being is considered as this affects them both at
home and at work.

The Board has continued to ensure that all cross cutting issues have been addressed; in particular, the policies
and work plans for HIV/A|Ds, Persons with Disability and Gender have been developed and are being
imti,: mented.

' 1\-

,,, : StaftTraining and l.'cvelopment ;;,; i y.:.-,i ...; , '

To ensure that CMftvDA rot only att;'a,"ts but aisu ietains the best taent, me agency ar:i: to nurrure p€oiiie't
, careers by making relevant o;lportunities aceessibln ar',i helcing them to develop skills, knolledge and

experience in different functions or specialism. Staff training and develop,rentare a prerequisite for employees'
growth. ln FY 202112022, training continued to focus on departmentar technical compelencies and people
management skills at all levels.

The Board also provides opportunities for groups of existrng and future senior leaders to benchmark with best
practices on management. Capacity building will remain a key objective for the agency.

Occupational Health and Safety
Good healh and safety standards are ideal and rernain an individual and corporate responsibility for the staff
ard the ageflcy. Tlrc agerrcy is cornrnitted to poaciircly nnnagrrg at health and safety risks associated with
its rnandates.

The Board has a comprehensive medical scheme for its staffand directors. The pofrcies are reviewed annuallv
to ensure that the CVvI,VDA maintains a healthy workforce and safe environment.

Zero Tolerance to Corruption
CWWDA has a zero tohrance policy towards com"rption. During the yearthe ag€nsy canied out corruption risk
assessment and mitigation measures. ln order to enhance integrity in public proanrement, CWDA posted all
advertisements and awards to the public notice board at he gate of the head guart officers. Advertised open
tenders in the papers for everybody to participate.

Corporate Social RespomiHity amd lrrestntent
Through stakeholder engagement. rve har,e hstened to and taHred witr or-r employees, alstorners, investors,
regubbrs, stpSers, ikn{oventmental Ogerizations (},lc,os) and conrntnity representatires, wtp trare
helped us to develop our water master plan.

Towards this, the Board continues to pay sctml fees for best performing student at Baridro prln'ary school.

Erwironrental Sustainabilty Report
Erwironmmtal SusAinadity refers b concerbd efforts b nr$ate aganst envirmrnertd degraddirn- it s tp
maintenarrce of te fa&rs and praOitps t\at confrlute b fe qudty of envirorrrent m a lcrg tsrrn basb. h
imhres rnaktr'g decisixts ard hkiq actkn Urd ae h tlp hbresb of probatrp fre rdrrC rorH, wilh

II-\D(
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particular emphasis on preserving the capability of the environment to support human life. CWWDA is
cognizance of the possible impacts (both positive and negative) resulting from interaction of the organization's
aclivities with both physical and social environments.

The objective of the CWWDA in environmental sustainability is therefore to promote sustainable development
within our area of jurisdiction by ensuring environmental protection, social equity, and economic development.

,Approach

CWWDA environmental sustainability is guided by the Environmental Management antl Coordination
(Amendrnent) Act of 2015 which is the principal legislation governing the conduct of environmental
management in Kenya; and the Constitution of Kenya, 2010. Other legislation related to natural resources
such as Watc; Act, foresl t+r Land planning Acl and guidelines by Nationa! -rvironmcnr 'inagemenl

Authority il'iEffii,). During the yr.rr under reviel, CWWDA urtde(ook the folltr,winE . riivities in cr,l,,,.,,ance with
.',he guidelines:

Fnvir0nmental sustainability planning

CWWDA developed an integrated wor:kplace environment health and safety policy statement which states the
organization's commitment to prtltect the environment, preserve the health and safety of C\AMDA .;rployees
and communities, and ensure safe development of water and sanitation infrastructure.
This policy statement provides a framework for developing environmental objectives, targets and programs.
The organizational service charter also indude the environmental consideratrons such as the enforcement oi
water quality monitoring

Some of the envirorrnental and socid impact asse*srnent reports lioensd by NEMA are for the folbwing
ryoiects annng o$ers:
Reffiiftatirn Df Mzhna ptpeline, rehaffiiffiion of Marere prpeline, refrabdlitation'of Baridlo Weltfields and
rehabilitation of Trv/i Boreholes

C\ MDA subjeds a[ he nevr water and sanibtion infrasFucture projecB b environmental and socid impact
assessment process in line with the Environmental Management and Coordination Act, (EMCA), 'lgg9 in order
to identiff both potentid positive and negative impacts. This process alo/vs for provisbn of enhancement,
mitigation, restoration and mmpensation measures to ensure that the proiects are environmentally and socially
sustainable. The reports are submitted to NEMA for review and licensing and aho to funding agencies (where
applicable) for approlal based on intemational standards.
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10. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the un-audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2022which show the state of CVWVDA

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Board is to ensure efficient and sustainable provision of quality and affoi'dable water
and seweragc services in its area o[ lurisdiction,

The main functions of CV1MDA

Ova;ership ,rnd holding of water ad.;r,rei'agd as.'.ts/lnfrastruct'.r;.: on ;:irari uf rlre Nati<rnai ,..c,

Govemment in the Ceast Region. i

Platrin;, deveiq.rrnent and expanson ol water and ';:*:ruge serviceu iitfr':stiuc:u;i on t'?half of the
NationalGovernme.t in |ire Ccost Region. ;

Provision of Bulk water serviccs in the Coast region.

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended 30h June,2022 are set out on page 1 - 5.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsiUe for he statutory audit of Coast Water Wbrks Da/eloprnent Agency in
accvydarrce \fith A.rticle 229 of t.e Const'trrti$ of Kenya arrj thc Rrtjic Arrlit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

For 0n behalf

Secretary

Dde

Mary
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11. STATEMENT OF D!REGTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act, require

the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of Coast Water Development Agency (CWWDA), which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the CWWDA at the end of the financial year and the operating

results of CWWDA for the year. The Directors are also required to ensure that CWWDA keeps proper

accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the agency. The Directors

are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the agency.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentaticn of he CWWDA's financial statements, which
give a true erd fair view of the state of affairs of the Board for and as at the end of the financial year ended on

Jur:e.j!),1.r.:.2 This r, -nonsibiiity includes: (i)maintaining adequate finan,:ral .' .03!e'0, 'rt arrangenrents and

ensuring tnat ihese cu ,lnue to be efferlive tJrt')ughout the reporting period; ir;, 0rdiltdirrr .r Droperaccou;'ting
records, uThish rtiellos,, with reasonable accuracy at anv tin:e the finarrcial'position of the '.v.jLnfl', (iiit designing,

implementng and mair{ainrng intemai r;or:truls reievant tc'the preparaon arru fair presei:triiurr o the financial

statements, and ensuring that '\ey are free from maieriai r:ri9<.i^tgry1spts, whether due to error or fraud; (iv)

safeguarding the assets of the agency (v) selecting and appliing app;opriate accounting policies; and (vi)

making accounting estimates that are reasonaiJle in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for CWWDA's financial statements, which have been prepared using

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity

with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the mannff required by the PFM Act,

2012 and tre State Corporations Act, CAP 446. The Directors are of the opinion that C\ MDA's iinancial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of Agency's transactions during fie financial year ended June

30,20?1 , and of the Agency's financial position as at that date. The Directors ftrther confrm the corpleteness
of he accounti'rg re.cords rnaintained for the ngenc,y, wtrici harc been refed.upot in he preoaration d lhe
Agenc/s fnarrcialsbbments as well as he adequacy d the intemalcontrolsy$ems.

Notfring has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that CWffDA will not remain a going concem for
at least the next twetve rnonhs from he date of this statement.

Approval of the ftnancial statements

The agency's financiat statements were approved by the Board on 29h August 2f'22 and signed on ils behalf
by:

DR. LK GA IIIR
As. CHIEF EXECUTwE OFFIGER
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3()TH JUNE 2022

HEAD OF FINANCE CHAIRMAN OF THECHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MR. MARTIN TSUMA

stcN........

STEPHEN M

ICPAK.NO.l

.. stcru.........

DR. L

SIGN

,^" /r"/p!*?.. Ort"....1-il. ?*2 . Date. 7/.t

Description Notes 2022 2021

Kshs. Kshs.

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Grants 7 1,782,327,999 744,983,335

1,782,327,999 744,983,335

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Operational lncome o 797,320,840 784,271,797

Other lncomes 8 16,644,210 95,393,070

TOTAL REVENUE 2,586,293,049 1,624,648,201

EXPENDITURE

Use of Goods and Services 0 374,640,284 382,474,549

Remuneration of Directors 10 11,207 ,809 18,633,255

Employees costs 11 232,431,421 202,358,722

General Expenses 12 31,316,800 19,844,689

0perational Expenses 13 706,937,376 616,879,264

Project Costs 14 280,811,774 287,538,421

Finance Costs 15 50,249,323 55,870,724

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,687,594,788 1,593,599,625

Surplus/(Loss)before Tax 898,698,260 41,048,577
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON COAST WATER WORKS
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coast Water Works
Development Agency set out on pages 1 to 32, which comprise of the statement of
financial position as at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison

Report of the Auditor-General on Coast ll/ater Works Development Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2022



of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.
I have obtained al! the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Coast Water Works Development Agency as at
30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Water Act, 2016 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 Property, Plant and Equipment

1.1 Unsupported Land Balance

The statement of financial position and Note 19 to the financial statements reflect
property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.7,988,414,073 which includes an amount
of Kshs.150,000 for land. However, as previously reported, according to land
categorization report in preparation for a comprehensive transfer plan for assets and
liabilities from National Water Conservation and Pipeline Corporation and Ministry of
Water and lrrigation to Coast Water Works Development Agency dated 3 July, 2021, the
Agency is in possession of sixty-one (61) parcels of land with buildings in the Counties of
Kilifi, Mombasa, Malindi, Kwale and Taita Taveta, all registered under National Water
Conservation and Pipeline Corporation and Government of Kenya. The assets register
provided for audit review did not give details of the land with net book value of
Kshs.150,000 and the terms on which it was held or area address of the parcels of land
and buildings contained in the report.

In addition, the Land Categorization Report as at 1 September, 2022, category 43
indicated that the Agency had lost possession of fourteen (14) pieces of land in various
counties in coast region, and which were previously registered under National Water
Conservation and Pipeline Corporation and Government of Kenya. Some of the parcels
of land have been sub-divided and title deeds issued to private developers. The Agency
has placed caveats and restrictions on some pieces of grabbed land in Mombasa County.
The National Land Commission and Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission has also
been engaged to undertake investigations into these properties with a view to recovering
the same.

In the circumstances, the ownership of the land, and the accuracy, validity and
completeness of the land balance of Kshs.150,000 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be
confirmed.

1.2 Unsupported Additions to Property, PIant and Equipment

As disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.7,988,414,073. However, assets
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register in support of this balance was not provided for audit review. Further, included in
the balance are additions of Kshs.753,237,216 during the year under review which had
no supporting schedules and payment vouchers.

!n the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.7,988,414,073 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Unreconciled Variance in Trade and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position and Note 17 lo the financial statements reflect trade
and other receivables balance of Kshs.4,562,727,078 which includes an amount of
Kshs.4,554,155,875 due from seven (7) Water Service Providers (WSP). However, the
balance reflected in the financial statements differs with Water Service Providers' account
balances of Kshs.4,170,398,973 by Kshs.383,756,902 as detailed below:

The resultant variances were not reconciled nor explained. Further, debtors' ageing
analysis was not provided for audit review.

!n the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the trade and other receivables
balance of Kshs.4,562,727,078 and any bad debts provisions thatwould be applicable
could not be confirmed as at 30 June, 2022.

3.0 Unsupported World Bank Loan

As disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects a World Bank loan balance of Kshs.14,413,176,398. Documents maintained by
the Agency indicated that the loan relates to two Agreements between the Agency and
the Bank. However, lt/lanagement did not provide a breakdown of the loans received to
date and outstanding balances to support Kshs.14,413,176,398 reflected in the financial
statements.

Further, the status of the World Bank Credit No.lDA-4376-KE totalling
Kshs.4,570,199,584 was not provided for audit review nor was the same included in the
loan balance as at 30 June, 2022.
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Water Service Provider (WSP)

Reported
Balance
(Kshs.)

Balance as per Bill
Fonararded to WSP

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)

Mombasa Water and Sewerage company 1 ,615,500,1 14 1,639,471,278 (23,971,164',)

MalindiWater and Sewerage Company 510,377,647 583,404,045 (73,026,398)

Kilifi-Mariakani Water
Comoanv

and Sewerage 912,748,862 767,894,945 144,853,917

Kwale Water and Sewerage company 788,632,266 724,565,508 64,066,757

Taita/Taveta Water and Sewerage Company 708,109J82 455,063,196 253,045,986

Lamu Water and Sewerage Company 15,763,804 15,763,804

Tana River Water and Sewerage Company 3,024,000 3,024,000

Total 4,554,155,875 4,170,398,973 383,756,902



ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and fair presentation of the World Bank
loan balance of Kshs.14,413,176,398 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

4.0 Unconfirmed World Bank Financed lnfrastructure

As disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements, the Work in Progress of
Kshs.6,063,102,561 as at 30 June, 2022 is net of transfers of Kshs.746,582,974 lo
property, plant and equipment. However, details of the World Bank contracts that were
complete, work in progress and transferred to water infrastructure were not provided for
audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Work in Progress of
Kshs.6,063,102,561 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

5.0 Unsupported Expenditure on Legal Fees & Related Expenses

The statement of financial performance and Note 9 to the financial statements reflect use
of goods and services balance of Kshs.374,640,284 which includes legal fees & related
expenses of Kshs.8,290,608. However, the following anomalies were noted:

i. The legal fees included Kshs.1,083,208 incurred on arbitration and legal charges
for a Court case between a contractor and Coast Water Works Development
Agency regarding payment of Kshs.24,156,731 for work done under procurement
No: CWSB/TT-EQA/I/10812016-2017. The legal advice from the Office of Attorney-
General vide letter Ref: AG/ARB/C|V10612020 of 11 January, 2022 was that the
Agency was to brief the Equalization Fund Administration Board of all the pending
bills relating to projects financed under the Equalization Fund to avoid the costs of
arbitration.

It is therefore not clear why the Agency enlisted the services of a lawyer to arbitrate
on a payment that is owed by the Equalization Fund considering that, as per the
projects' status report provided for audit review, a total of Kshs.587,163,029 was
owed to contractors for incomplete projects under the Equalization Fund.

ii. The amount of Kshs.8,290,608 also includes Kshs.6,736,000 paid during the year
under review to a law firm hired by the Agency to represent it in various Court
cases which have been running since the year 2007. However, the amount was
not reflected as accounts payable in the previous year's financial statements and
no records were provided as evidence that the Attorney-General was notified
before the law firm was hired as provided under Section 20 of the Office of the
Attorney-General's Act, 20 1 2.

ln addition, it was not possible to confirm that the amount paid was as per the
advocates remuneration order as no invoices were provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the regularity, accuracy and completeness of the legal fees and
related expenses of Kshs.8,290,608 for the year ended 30 June, 2022 could not be
confirmed.
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6.0 lrregular Payment of Travelling and Accommodation Allowances - Local

As disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects use of goods and services of Kshs.374,640,284 which includes Kshs.34,420,035
spent on travelling and accommodation allowances - local. Review of imprests register
and supporting surrender documents revealed that officers who were not employees of
the Agency were paid daily subsistence allowances amounting to Kshs.903,200 and daily
subsistence allowances of Kshs.420,860 and Kshs.783,000 in respect of Mwache Project
and Water and Sanitation Development Project respectively both financed by the World
Bank. However, it was not explained how the Agency incurred expenditure on behalf of
other accounting entities from its voted funds.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the daily subsistence allowances
of Kshs.2,107,060 for the year ended 30 June , 2022 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). ! am independent of the Coast Water Works Development Agency
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Budget and Budgetary Control

During the year under review, the Agency had an actual revenue of Kshs.2,586,293,049
out of a budgeted amount of Kshs.3,050,250,000, resulting in underfunding of
Kshs.463,956,951 or 15o/o of the budget. Similarly, expenditure totalling
Kshs.1,687,594,787 was incurred during the year against an approved budget of
Kshs.1,798,281,149, resulting in under expenditure of Kshs.110,686,362 or 6% of the
budget.

The underfunding and under expenditure may have curtailed realization of planned
project activities and service delivery to residents of coast region.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

Various prior year audit issues remained unresolved as at 30 June, 2022. Although
Management has indicated that the issues are being acted upon, no evidence was
provided to support the assertion.
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, ! confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Undelivered Project Works

The statement of financial position reflects work-in-progress balance of
Kshs.6,063,102,561 , out of which expenditure of Kshs .28,487 ,228 relates to construction
works on lmprovement of Water Supply to Dongo Kundu EPZ, Phase ll, procured vide
Tender Ref: C\AMDA/TM/0212020-2021 on 21 December,2020 at a contract sum of
Kshs.226,359,227 and expected completion period of one year (or 365 days). The
records indicate that an advance payment of Kshs.45 ,271 ,845, being 20% of the contract
price was made on 19 January, 2021. Examination of support schedules and payment
voucher number 1485121-22 revealed payment on account of lnterim Payment Certificate
No. 2 of Kshs.28,487,228, being 12.5% of the contract amount. However, at the time of
site verification on 17 October, 2022, only approximately seven hundred (700) meters of
the pipeline had been laid instead of the specified 2.8 Km.

ln the circumstances, the value for money may not be realized on a total of
Kshs.73,759,073 spent on construction works for lmprovement of Water Supply to Dongo
Kundu EPZ, Phase ll.

2. Emergency Works for Likoni Water Supply

The work in progress balance of Kshs.6,063,102,561 shown in the statement of financial
position and Note 20 to financial statements includes an expenditure for Sureca, Long
Term Technical Assistance (LTTA) Mwache Dam of Kshs.71 ,737,170 which consists of
Kshs.38,130,757 for construction of civil works. Review of the payment records revealed
an advance payment of Kshs.39,848,359 (VAT inclusive) was made to a construction
company following procurement of Emergency Works for lncreasing Water Availability in
Likoni under the contract signed on 18 August, 2021 and site handed over to the
contractor on 27 August, 2021.

Review of the consultancy monthly progress report of August,2022 revealed that works
on site completed was 9.46% after 12 months of construction, with the key impediment
to the work progress cited as slow mobilization of staff and equipment.

Further, review of the scope of works during audit inspection conducted on
30 September,2022 revealed the following anomalies;

i. The scope of works required the contractor to drill two new ground water
boreholes, A and 9. However, borehole A had not been drilled and borehole 9,

Reporl of the Auditor-General on Coast Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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although drilled, was not functional after being rejected as the contractor
developed it contrary to the Engineer's instructions on the quality of gravel to be
used as reported in the consultant's monthly progress report of August, 2022.

The works on Lines 1-1, 1-2 and 1 connecting boreholes 8, C and A to the main
line had not yet commenced.

Installations of electro-mechanical works and pipe works at fifteen (15) borehole
sites, extension flow division chamber (lt/larere Pipeline), construction of DN250-
200 HDPE PN 25 parallel Marere Pipeline of 6,368m and chlorine dosing units at
Kaya Bombo and Magodzoni were yet to commence with only foundation
excavations of the two chlorination units done.

iv. There was no water supply in Likoni as the combined hydraulic - chemical well
rehabilitation of eight (8) boreholes were yet to be done and only five (5) boreholes
(6.1,6.2, D2,8.1 & C) had been cleaned and rehabilitated.

ln the circumstances, value for money has not been realized on the contract for
Emergency Works for lncreasing Water Availability in Likoni costing Kshs.71 ,737,17O for
the year ended 30 June, 2022.

3. Staff Serving in Acting Capacities Beyond the Allowed Time Limit

As disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements, the statement of financial
performance reflects employees costs of Kshs.232,431,422 which includes salary and
wages of Kshs.193,759,894. Audit review of the expenditure revealed payment of acting
allowances totaling Kshs.687,540 to the Director-Project Development & Management
who acted as the CEO and Senior lnspector-Electrical who acted as the ln-Charge,
Baricho for periods exceeding six (6) months, contrary to Section 5.6.3 of the Agency's
Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual, 2020.

The Management was therefore in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report of the Auditor-General on Coast Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Basis for Conclusion

Liquidity Risk

Note 21 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2022 reflects amount
payable to general creditors of Kshs.2,277,338,226. However, trend analysis for the last
four financial years points to increasing creditor balances as follows:
2019(Kshs.1,334,654,408);2020(Kshs.1,487,587,719);2021(Kshs.1,854,798,746) and
2022(Kshs.2,277,338,226), which is an increase of Kshs.942,683,818 or about 71o/ofrom
2019 to 2022.

The upward trend in creditor balances points to liquidity risk facing the Agency and
inability to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were operating
effectively, in all material respects. ! believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Agency's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
f\Ianagement is aware of the intention to terminate the Agency or to cease operations.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Agency's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on Coast Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Aud it

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Agency's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a
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a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Agency's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Agency to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Agency to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

CPA
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

27 April,2023

Report of the Auditor-General on Coast Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Coasf Water Works Development Agency
Annual Report and Financial Statements For The Year Ended 30u'June 2022

14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 3(lTH JUNE 2022

NON CURRENT ASSETS

NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 5 were signed on behalf of Directors by:

CHIEF EXECUTME OFFICER
MR. MARTIN TSUMA

SIGN

HEAO OF FINANCE
STEPHEN M. KIVUVA
ICPAKNO.I

CHAIRMAN OF THE
DR. K

SIGT,ISIGN

2

ASSETS Note 2022 2021

Kshs Kshs

CURRENTASSETS

lnventories 16 48,150,200 32,173,270

Trade and Other Receivables 17 4,562,727,076 4,s06,840,899

Cash and Bank Balances 18 1,196,071,272 315,939,291

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,806,948,552 4,854,953,460

Property, Plant and Equipment 19 7,988,414,073 7 ,471,811,487
Work in Progress 20 6,063,102,561 4,996,849,936

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 14,051,516,635 12,468,661,423

TOTAL ASSETS 19,958,465,186 17,323,614,883

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other Payables 21 2,284,862,992 1,859,900,s49

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,284,862,992 1,859,900,549

Bank Loans 22 14,413,1 13,201,986,800

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,413,176,39E 13,201,986,800

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,698,039,390 15,061,887,349

NET ASSETS 3.160.425.796 2.261.727.534

ACCUMUI.ATED SURPLUS 3,160,425,796 2,261,727,534

TOTAL NET ASSETS LESS LNBL|TIES 3,160,425,796 2,261,727,534

,""./.{..L/ ?a.?.,1.. Date. :?:.k7..:....
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Attributable to the owners of the controlling entity

Balance as at 30.6.2021 2,n0,679,gfi

Surplus.fcr the period 41,049,576
r.a

.2422

Surplus for the period

2,261.??i,r:Ai

898,698,260

3,160,425,796

898,698,:d0 I

2,261,721

Notes Reserves Total

Kshs

Accumulated surplus

Kshs

2.220,678.959

Balance as at 30.6.2022 3,160,425,796

J



Coast Water Works Development Agency
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16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 JUNE 2022

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MR. MARTIN TSUMA

HEAD OF FINANCE
STEPHEN M.

rc

SIGN stGN....

CHAIRMAN OF BOARD

DR. DANIEL

SIGN

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

379,034,490733,052,834Operational lncome

1,782,327,999 744,983,335Grants

16,644,210 95,393,0700ther lncomes

1,219,410,8952,532,025,043Total Receipts

Payments

202,313,688232,431,421Employees Costs

136,615,238 140,787,002Goods and services

11,207,809 18,633,255Remuneration of Directors

19,739,78831,316,800General Expenses

351,209,776 310,077,459Operational Expenses

280,811,774 287,538,421Project Costs

00Finance Costs

979,089,6131,043,592,818Total Payments

1,488,432,225 240,321,282Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

(3,402,431,123)(753,237,216)Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and Equipment's

Decrease in non-current receivables

(1,066,252,626) 2,543,041 ,013lncrease in investments

(859,390,1 1 0)(1,8'19,489,842)Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

1 ,21 1 ,189,598 574,555,700Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of bonowings

't,211,189,598 574,555,700Net cash flows used in financing activities

880,1 31 ,981 (63,03 1 ,1 00)Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

378,970,392315,939,291Cash and cash equivalents at 1 JULY 2021

1,196,07',|,272 315,939,291

,^rr../.fl/-mJ.. ,," Hu/-w: ,","lil/
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17. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR T}IE YEAR ENDED 30.6.2022

Adjustments Final Budget

2021-2022 2021-2022

Kshs

2,113,C00,000 190,000,00c 2.303.000,i;c,J

Percentage
Utilization

Revenue

C.,.e r' ,ent g:tt
ano !

Renderinq nf

seruces

Gains on disposal,
,irntal income and

fees

Kshs

1.752,J'./,'i.q a1c 572,001 78o/.

i3i,,CCO 000 l,l7,li?i),M0 48,320,840

tiv.

I ;::,ooo.ooo ,I

960/o

37%

Original Budget
Actual on

Comparable
Basis

Surplus/Deficit

202'.1-20222021-2022FY

Kshs Kshs

2021-2C222021-2022

Kshs Kshs

gt t9

8,250,000 .,,250,0c00 6,644,210 1,605,790

190,000,000 2,586,293,049 463,956,951TOTAL 2,860,250,000

Expenses

3,050,250,000

Use of Coods and
Services

388,300,000 2,300,000 390,000,000 374,t/,0,2U 15,359,716

i

30,000,m0
Renuneratkm of
Directors

0 30,0fn 0fx) 18.7s2,1911 1 ,207 809

Employees Costs 248,000,000 250.600 000 232.431,422 18,168,578

C,enerd Expenses 34,170,000

2,600.000

2,700,000 36,870.m0 31,316,800 5,ssg2m

93%

85%

631.649,375 135.270,000 766,919,375 706,937,375 59,982,000 92Yo

ftoiect Cosls

Operational
Expenses

280.811.774 280,811.7740 280,811,774 0 100%

Fharrce Costs 43.080,000 0 43.080.000 50.249,323 -7,169.3A 116%

TOTAL 1,656,011.149 1/t2,870.000 1,798,zE:t,t49 1,6E7,59it,787 110,686,362
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NOTES

The 73% on Grants is an indication that the Agency did not receive all the grants as were budgeted. This is
attributed to D,.rnoi grants for AFD prqects, Revenue from water sales was at 10n % rneaning the
performance was abcve the targeted billing.

Use of Goods and Services
The 96% on use of goods and services indication that the costs were within the brrdget for the year under
review. And thus tl;ere were no expenditure ovemlns

Remuneration of Directors

Re,nunerationtothelBoardwas!'.'"hs. 11,2u,.:Cgincludinglrr,nolsliLiotheOhairmanarrdrnrs.wa.',rr:irr,n
the approved buoget of Kshs. 30 million Tl,c' icw absorotion is athibuted to denrrture of Directors, after

expriiy ui their term within the year under rev;":,

Employees Costs

Employees cost was within the set budget of the year under revievr

C'eneral Expenses

This caters fcr operational cost of running the offiqes and includes office eiectricity arnong others and the

expendihre was within the set hJdget for ttp year under reviav

Operations Expenses

This caters for production costs of water and mainty covers power cost. The co9 was witrin he budget
expect for Baricho pumping station which was on increasing trend as per tre report.

Project Costs
This covers Gok funded projects and was fully funded in the year under ;'eview. Most of he Projects are still
ongorng
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18. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

CWWDA was initially established under water Act 2002 and registered as Coast Water Services Board.
Following the adoption of the water Act 2016 in the water sector, CWIVDA changed its name to CWWDA as
per the guidelines. CV1 ryDA is wholly owntd by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya.
CMffDA's principal activity is to ensure efficient, effective and sustainable provision of quaiity rnd affordable
water services (defined to indude sewerage) in irs area of jurisdiction - Mombasa County, Taita Taveta
^cunty,Kilifi County, Kwale County, Lamu County and Tana Rivo ^ornt.

2; c. ATEMENT OF COMPL.IANCE AND BASIS Ol- PREoARATION

Coast Watur Servrces Board's fhranciat stateripnts have been prepared in r*.,xdance with ario er,lipiy *it;r
lnternational Public Sector Accounti;tg Sta"dar.ir: (lDIAS). The financia! statements ar^ presented in Kenya
shillings, which is the functional and reporting curTency of CV'MDA.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost. The cash flow statement is
prepared using the indirect method. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.

3. ADOPTIOIII OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i) Relevant new standards and arnendments to published standards effectrve for the yea ended 30 June
2020.

Standard

IPSAS:38 Disdoore of
interest in ofner Entities

7

]PSAS 33:First tine
adoption of Accrual Basis

IPSAS

CWWDA adopted IPSAS in the year ended 30.6.2014 and therefore prwisirn of
first time adoption of accrual basis does not apply : ,.'

IPSAS;34 Separate
Financial staternent

The Agenry does not have any subsidiaries , joint ventrres or invesfnenb and
therebre tre standard does not apply

IPSAS:35 Consolidate

Financial Staternents

The Agency does not have any subsidiaries , joint ventures or investments and
therefore the standard does not

IPSAS:36 lnvestrnent in

Associates and Joint
Venfures

The Agency does not have investments in associates or joirrt venfures

IPSAS:37 Joint
Arrarnernenb

The Agency does not lsve an interest in a pint anarqement and trerefure
standard does rnt apfly

fre

rhe Agency does ncd ha/e hffi in dIEr enlities and therefore tfre stardard
does not ap$
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Standard
IPSAS 39. Employee

Benefits

ii) New Standards and lnterpretation in use lssue but not yet effective in Year Ended 30 June2022

Effective date and impact

IPSAS 40: Public Sector
Combinations

Applicable ;1 January 2018
IPSAS 39 was to create convergence to changes in IAS lg.Employees
benefits. The main objective is to ensure accurate information relating to
pension liabilities arising from the defined benefits scheme by doing away
with the corndor

Applicable 1 January 2019

Covers public combinations arising from exchange transactions in case they
are treated similarly with IFRS 3 Business combinations and co'r,',, ations
aridng ) 'r non - exchange tiarsactions which are cover'p,: |\.rr ., Lrndci
Public *.'lor combinatio;r: as anratgarnations.

L

iii) Ear !y adcpti:r, of standards

Coast Water Works Development Agency did not adopt any new or amended standards inyear 2021

4. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

Revenues from lease fees and miscellaneous income have been recognized as exchange transactions.
GranE fortre donors and Gorcmment of Kenya hare been recogntzed as non+xdrange tran-saAions. Lease
bes lnccvne is recognizeC in the year in nAich it is due. A. grant frorn the t3ora.-.'lmert of Kenf" and oher
donors for specific expenses is recognized as income in the peribd it is received ard il is not accnred.

b) &tdget information

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is. all planned costs and income are presented in a
single statement to determine the needs of the entity. As a result of Ure adoption of the accrual basis for
budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity differences that would require reconciliation between
the actualcomparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional financial siatefllent in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

E
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c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated et hi:t,rrical cost less accumulated depreciation,
Depreciation is calculated on the reducing balance basis to write down the cost of each asset to its residual
value over its estimated useful life as follows;

Equipment

Fumiture, Fntirrgs

Computers

Water lnfrastructure

,''lotor Vehicles .rnd Cycies

12.5%

125%

33.3%

2.5\',.,

25%

d) inventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and rret realiz:able value. Cost is determined by First in first out
(FIFO) method. Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the selling expense. lnventories are recognized as an expense when deploynd for utilization or consumption
in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

e) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or mnstructive) as a result of a past
ever( it is probabh hat an CIJfiorv of resotrrces ernbodying economic benefiB or service potentid witl be
requrred to settle he oblil;atnn and a reliatte estkmb can be made of.tte amount of tle oblgatim.

0 Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingrent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to
the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflovr of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential is remote.

Under the current year in review there is a contingency liability of kshs 587,'163,124 under Equalization funds
projects with has been pending for years. But since the Act has been passed it likely that the same will be
paid next year as fund will be Disbursed

g) Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contrngent asset. but disdoses detaib of a possible asset whose existence
b contkqent on the occunence or IErHCCUrence of o.re or more uncertain future events rnt whoIy within
the cond of he Entity in fre nobs to fre finarrcial statements. Cofiti€ent assets are assessed contirnralty
b ensrrc hat devebprnents are appopiately refledd in he frrarrial sbbnents- lf it has become vrrtua[y
cerEh that an ioior of economic benefits or service poertlid uril arise ard fre assefs vahre can be
nEastred rdidry. Ute asset ard he rehted revefiue are recDgr*zed h Bp f,rnncid statemenB of he perird
n wtich fre dunge Ga;s
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h) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entity to state the reserves
maintarnsd and appropriate policies adopted.

i) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Agency recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy prospectively

j) Foreign curency transactions

Transactions in foreii;n ,-irlei .:€5 ai'e ':tially accounted for lt the ruling rate of exchanl'ls r., ihr dtc c. r .

transactjon. Trade creditot', or debtoro. enominated ir: foreign crJnency are reponeo.ar the.siaierneni.
financial position reporting date hy:ipi:iying the exchange rate on that r1at,:. Exchange differences.arir.ir'5
ir'.imthesettlementotcreottors, orfrc;i,tiiereportingof crecitorsatiatesdifferentfromthoseatwhrchtir:_7
were inifl:liy rr^arded during the period, are recegnized as inconre or ixpe!:,ses .: the period in which they
arise.

k) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualiffing assets as part of property, plant and equipment.
Srch borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or constructed
and bonowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when consEuction of the asset is complete is

handed over to the beneficially, Further bonowing cpsts are charged to the statement of financial
perfonnance.

I Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bark. Bank account balances include
amounts held at he various cornmercial banks at tre end of the frnancial year. For the purposes of these
financial statements. cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash lmprests aM advances to
authorized public officers and/or institutions wtrich were nol sunendered or accounted for at ttre end of the
financial year.

m) Taxation

Coasl WaterWorks Darcloprnent Agency is a nononrnrercial state corporatbn in ttre provision of
essential servrces. llo pmvision forbxaton has not been made.

5. Critical Accounting Estirnates, Judgrments and Assumptions

ln the process of applyitg the Boards accounting pdicbs, fre directors have made estimates and
assmptbns that afu he reported anounb of assets and liatifities and disdmure of conbngeri asels ard
liaffies as at tp dte d tp financbl statenents and he reported amorrts of rerernns and erperses
durl6 he reporhrp period-

The slinaes ad wderlyirg assnnetins ire reurapd on an ongrip basrs

l0
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(a) CriticalJudgments in applying the agency's Accounting Policies

ln the process of applying the agency's mcrrunting policies, judgments have been made in determining: -
. Whether the assets are impaired;

. The classification of financial assets;

. The going concem.

(b) CriticalAccountingEstimatesanoAssumptions

Th. key areas of judgments and sources of uncertainty in pe I' rtion are as set out. below:

(i) Useful lives of property and Equiprnent - 1. .. .

The directors make estirnates rn deteflT;ining depreciation rates for property and equrpme,,i. lhe iates aru
set out in the accounting policy (g) a"ave t.:r 1r-operty and equipment.

The agency reviews the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
During the financial year, no changes to the useful lives were identified by the board of directors.

(ii) Provision for Doubtful Debts

The agency reviews its cilneat assds portfolio to assess the likelihood of impairment. Provisisr for
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the agency will not be able to
cotlect aI amounts due. Where necessary an estimation of the amounts inecoverable is made in 0rat year.
Provision bi'inrpaiment shall be recognized upon apprcval by the Board of Dre:tcrs. No pro,isien of baC
debts were made in resped to lhe year under review.

NOTE6 Operationallncome

The Agency's major sources of revenues are he water sales which are earned from the sab of bulk water to
he WSPs and adminishative fues trat is eamed from the lease of its assets to trem.
During the year, revenue was earned as follows:

2422 2021

Xstu. Kshs.

&.Cky Water Sdes 787.320.840 78l-271,797

Mminisbative Fees 0 0

Tdal 787,rm,W 7U,271,797
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Month Mombasa Malindi Kitifi Krvale Tavevo TOTAL

Jul-21 23,004,000 10,650,720 '19,167,100 7,483,220 5,891,060 66,196,100

Aug-21 22,761,300 10,642,990 20,090,320 8,688,900 7,231,590 69,415,090

Sep-21 21,094,100 11,110,260 20,462,760 7,476,920 6,857,540 67,001,580

Oct-21 20,258,700 10,889,640 18,376,120 7,614,000 7,280,940 64,419,300

Nov-21 19,720,040 11,416,320 19,209,760 8,110,960 9,102,420 67,559,400

Dec-21 19,134,100 11,472,220 18,386,790 7,166,800 6,577,400 62,737,300

Jan-22 20,261,520 11,996,540 22,265,220 7,034,940 6,380,180 67,838,400

Feb-22 22,879,090 11,303,240 21,032,990 7 ,761,840 7,321,300 70,297,340

Mar-22 18,228,300 11,495,'100 20,u5,440 9,127,940 5,969,540 65,166,320

Apr-22 18,172,140 11,285,240 18,737,020 7,666,190 6,177,320 62,037,900

|tay.22 17,533,190 1 1 ,302,190 17,245,720 6,134,200 6,977,360 59,192,640

Jun-22 18,056,790 11,429,240 18,390,940 10,140,920 7 ,451,700 65,459,480

TOTAL 241,102,240 134,893,690 233,699,960 94,4A6,720 83,218,240 787,320,940

NOTE 7 Grants

Grants are recognized in the books when they are actually received and they are not accrued, During the
Financial year, grants were received as follows.

Grant AMOUNT AMOUNT

2022 2021

GOK Recurrent 445,552,703 388,493,335

GOK Development 1,121,925,749 356,500,000

CLSG 214,949,547 0

Total 1,782,327,999 744,983,335
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NOTE 8

Other lncome

The agency earned other income from various sources as summarized below. The main source of other
income was the sale of water by bowser (69%) followed by rent from various sources al10o/o.

AMOUNT

2022 2021

r:rder sales 2,000

r,. ::ZCu
t.:

xent Received 168,5C0

Miscellaneous income 10,833,000 92,025,27i:

Sale of water to CBOs 2,758,300

Total other income 95,393,070

DETAILS AMOUNT

3,992,010

341,000laboratory charges 490,000

16,644,210

t3
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NOTE 9

Travelling & accommodation foreign

Advertising & Publicity

Trade show and Fxhil rl rn

KRA tav as.lessmerts

World Water Day

Hire of transport equipment & ri-rachtnery

GYitE:?1office supplies

Laboratory expenses

650,760

6,321,725

663,701

30,-?91 0ri9 0

,051,500 i50^062 j

31,C,m 
I

0

,,,$3,453 
I

10,224,819

3,030,0()6 2.901,048

?;45,5n 0

Use of Goods and Services

Kshs

m22 2021

Kshs

Telephone, Fax, lnternel Courier & Email 3,372,226 2,198,629

Travelling and accommodation- local 36,348,969

14,400

5.004.921

0

34,420,035

1 ,128,880 s28,536

8,313,651 7,127,014

Legal fees & related expenses

Hospitality

Fuel & Lubricant

8,290,608 13,051,745

Bank charges 287,958

Contracted professional services 0

460,431

8,659,988

[{onitoring and Evafu ation 12,650,110 26.231,763

Maintenance of office fumiture & equipment

8.728,865

'1,814,959

Andit fees

Maintenance expenses - vehicles 12,552,951

903,090

Maintenance of bnihings & stations 5.214,930 8,122,447

Statinery dfice 863,4S 1,325,100

2,104,330 6,222,460

236,M3,630

TOTAL

Covrd -19 Expense

Depreciation

374,640,284

237,965,672

382,474,549

l{
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

Employees Costs

2022

11,207,909

2022 2021

Kshs

26,,155,396

5,119,942

Remuneration of Directors 2C21

Kshs Kshs

Board Allowances 10,477,009 18,063,405

730,800 569,850Honora4a

TOTAL

Salaries and Wages 165,594,457193,7s9,894

Kshs

2,395,496Staff !-eave Allowance

Other Staff Allowances

2,911,749

26,864,090

2,793,$1

722

5,1d2.,114

232,431,422

3,733,574

Stafi Training

Total

Gratuity

NOTE 12

General Expenses 20n m21

Kshs Kshs

Ofice Electisty 1,960,862 960.294

lroEVehides ln$ftmce t,3'10,7/t4 1,733,84

Resettlement compensatbn 10.34r,469 387.711

Sectrity bgense 17.$9.126 16,763,600

TotC 31,3r3.E00 19,ru,68!l
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Operating Expenses 2021

Kshs Kshs

Electricity - Operations 497,029,745511,878,621

21,122,838

15,808,26R

Maintenance of Water Asseis 65,218,403 62,310,515

706,937,376 616,879,264

NOTE 13

Water Use Charges

2022

78,793

21,122,838

Eleclricity Nguu'';.tu 0

'l

Baricho Emergency Repai;,;

CLSC Expenscs

C.':t of Specialized Materials

Bulky Water Operations

Total

NOTE 14

17,C3C,C00

82,43i'l

6.1?4,550

2,742,638J

_' 607,897

0

Proie'ct Costs ztat 2021

Kshs

90,608,178

Kshs

Lamu Proiects 85,249,365

$naI dams and Pans 4,632,632 28,657,678

Drorrght mitigation 67,396,880 11,898,249

Equalization 3,369,409

994,031

22.ils.513

Water For Schools

Taita Prciects

m$2,470

3,n4,792y,2$,n4

Pnonty PrqecE 0 2s99,155

Kwde Prcljects 0 28,n1,offi

Dongo Kundu 30,502,545 41,6$,8n

Crcs County Prctlects 39,9s82(} 42146297

thi\rersd l-lealh Care I,r06,559 0

TotC ziil,fil,ra 2E7,53EIlt
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Finance Cost 2022

Kshs

2021

Kshs

Financing cost 50,249,323 55,870,724

NOTE 15

NOTE 16

lnl't ntories

Ivlachineiy, Pipes arrri Fittings

Uhemicuis

Stationery

Water lnventory

Total

NOTE 17

2022

Kshs Kshs.

38,835.504 30,732,000 
I

+, iz3,8Ci

1,,143,937

3,746,959

48,'150,200

_t
i ,+a',7-7i

Prepard llobr hsrarce

2021

0

32,173,270

m22 2021

Kshs Kshs

Trade and CIher Receivabhs

Mombasa Water arxi Se'aerage Cornpany Ltd

Malindi Water and Sewerage Company Ltd

1,615,500,111 1,571,123,390

563,873,206510.377.647

Kilifi MariakaniWater and Sewerage Ltd 912,748,862 1,014,768,981

Kwale Water and Sewerage Company Ltd 788,632,266 695,725,546

Taveta Water and Sewerage Company Ltd 708,1 09,1 82

15,763,8&r

635,608,942

Lamu Water and Sewerage Company Ltd 15,763,804

Tana Water and Sewerage Cornpany 3.024,000 3,024,000

Salary Advances 1.908,021 1,7€,266

ftepaid fVledical Cover 3,9r,461 708,662

391,113 657,622

S\afi lnrprest 2.294,608 3.&r3,480

TOTAT dsGa,TT.ort d506,810r99
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NOTE 18

Projects

Drought

2022

Kshs

28,675,130

548"0,34

77 398

.ie,535,236

80,760

2421

Kshs

68,698,410

4,361,596

442,163

70,5i,3

Administration i:ees

Wbrld Ban[. - A['

Sulk

Equalization

Cash anC Cash Equivalent

Development

Loan repayment

221,437,U5

237,351

213,355,276

238,416

016,276,351

2,491,99E

22,346,632

38,516,986 ?,712,288World Bank WSDP

AFD 243,680,606 206,791

KCB KISSIP 6,076 7,141

Total 1,196,071272 315,g3g,El

l8
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NOTE 19

Plant and

As at 30.6.2019 262,030,492 41,191,290 38,989,527 18,251,693 450,1 15,231 2,704,953,149 150,000 3,515,581,382

Additions 11,641,911 197,580 3'15,000 1,888,669.99 1,900,823,278

As at 30.6.2020 262,030,492 52,833,1 0l 39,187,1 07 18,566,693 450,115,231 4,593,522,036 1 50,000 5,416,404,660

Additions 400,400 1,t|37,833 821,046 3,399,771,843 3,402,431ln

As at 30.6.2021 262,030,192 53,233,501 40,624,940 19,387,739 1fi,115,231 7,993,293,979 150,000 8,818,835,792

Additione 3,515,620 2,858,622 280,000 746,582,974 753,237,216

As at 30.6.2022 262,030,492 56,749,121 43,483,562 19,667,739 450,115,23'l 8,739,876,9f,! 1fl!,000 9,572,072,999

Depreciation

Net book Value 262,030,492 40,092,756 29,812,321 12,101,918 349,913,372 256,872,593 gfl,123,452

Charge for year
2020

0 4,305,r97 4,147,011 763,553 34,281,356 1 14,939,051 158,335,171

Net book Value 262,030,492 44,397,953 33,959,335 12,865,471 384,094,729 371,710,64 1,109,058,623

Charge for year
2021 4,073,930 4,326,f 43 866,184 28,866,468 r99,832,347 237,965,672

Net book Value 262,030,492 48,471,883 38,286,078 I 3,731,655 412,961,196 571,512,991 1,U7,021,295
Charge for year

2022
0 5,215,804 3,515,385 901,184 8,181,336 2'18,496,921 236,643,630

Net book Value 262,030,492 53,71 7,687 41,801,'163 11,632,839 421,136,532 790,039,912 1,583,658,92s

As at 30.6.2019 1,10r,534 9,177,205 6,1{9,775 100,298,960 2,447,990,556 r50,000 2,564,857,929

As at 30.6.2020 8,435,148 5,227,772 5,701,222 66,020,503 4,221,811,392 l$,000 4,307,346,037

As at 30.6.2021 0 4.761.618 2.338.862 s.656.084 37.151.03s 7,121,750,888 I 50.000 7,471,811,487
As at 30.6.2022 0 3.03r.434 1.682.099 5.034.900 28.678.699 7.949.836.94r I 50,000 7.988.414.073
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NOTE 20

World Bank Baricho 3BHS

MakaminiDam

lvtwadre iam Treatment Plant

i*wacht, Dam Piv rc

Norhmainland Msa

Phase 1 Nyali

nrotection Works Baricho

Baricho 2 Pipeline

Tohl ,.

1M,856,063

17,659,608

33,3{7;274

226,671459,

117,382,928

12,705,869

19,202,950

;6,885,425

;d3,288,665145,883,13'l

+18,93C628 16,749,692

7,684,756

2021

Work ln Progress

2022

Kshs. Kshs

Balance b/f 4,996,849,934 7,539,890,949

106,892,066 487,559,711

503,352,931

Dongo Kundu Phase 2 28,487,228 45,271,845

71,737 ,170Sureca LTTA Mwache Dam

Gl(W STTA [4wache Dan 67,541,843

0

0

ffice Bock 7,476.n0 0

Transfer.to Water htastructure i|46,5W,974) . ,(3,399,11,844)

6,0G!,102,561 4,996,84!r,934
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NOTE 21

NOTE 22

Trade and Other Payables 2022 2021

Kshs Kshs

General Creditors 2,277,338,226 1,854,798,746

Paymaster General (June 2022) 3,117,944 0

Ukulima and Other Deductions 4,406,823 5, 1 01 ,802

TOTAL 2,294,862,993 1,859,900,549

2022 2021

World Bank Loan Kshs Kshs

Balance B/F 13,201,986,800 12,627,431,099

Disbursements 844,165,744 574,555,701

AFD Loan 243,657,000 0

AFD Loan Direct 123,366,854

TOTAL 14,413,176,398 13,201,986,800

2t
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Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

C\ /\ryDA considers risk management to be an integral part of good management practices and a significant
aspect of corporate governance. Effective management of risk will contribute towards achievemenl of the
agency's objectives.

The Agency's approach to risk management is based on risk governance structures, risk management
policies, risk identification, measurenirent, monitoring and reporting. The risk management policie; snd
systems are reviewed regularly to ensure they are in tandem with the micro and macro environment,
regulatory g,.rr elines, industry practice, market conditions as well as the servicc. t ffered.

tnis risk hlandgerngrr, ri?rilewcrk capl,.tres thE iollowtng among uther things:u
. The Agencv's risk ai pettte and parameters;
. lhe Agency s risk'r'rairix that highligiiis the ratir-rg ot risks;

The "'ructure of managing risks and accountabilities,
. The processes, procedures and reports that manage risks;
. The mitigating factors, prevention, contingency plans and controls.

The Agency's core business involves major engagements with financial transactions and processes which
pose certain risks. Three types of risks are reported as part of the risk profrle namely operatronal, strategic
and business continuity risks.

i) Operatbnal mks are events, hazards, variances or opportunities whictr could influeflce the achievenrent of
the Agerry's compfance arrl operatimd obiectives

ii) Strategic risk is'a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what was factored
into the organizatkrn's strategy and business nrotjel which could have an impact on the entity's performance.

iii) Business continuity nsks ue those events, hazards, variances and opportunities which ccxlld influence the
continuity of the entity.

One of the key risks the agency has identified in both the operational and strategic areas is the sustainability
of the administrative fee receivable in the provisions of the Water Act 2016 Financial risk as defined in IPSAS
15 and the managennnt tipreof, form part of Ns risk area.

Ihe financial management oblectives and policies are as outfined below:-

(a) Uquidity Risk

Liquidty risk is he risk that he Agerrcy will not have srficient financial resources b meet its obl(ptions wtren
Utey fa! &e s nil have to do so at excessirre costr Thb risk c n aise frorn misrnatctres in fre tining of
cash frons frorn revenrc ard captaUoperational odflofli asseb md li$ilities accordng to Sreir mafurity
proffes and an ocar r*pre cash fror sbeams hae been dsoonlixred. etc
Ihe otiediye d he lqudily and frJndrp ntarageficnt b trc ensure 0rd d ,uesee$le operatinal, c4,*d
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and loan commitment expenditure can be met under both normal and stressed conditions and the mismatch
is controlled in line with allowable risk levels" The agency has adopted an overall balance sheet approach
which consolidates all sources and utilization of liquidity, with the aim of maintaining a balance between
liquidity, cash florvs and interest rate considerations.

The agency's liquidity and funding management process includes:-

' Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing the short term requirements as well
as the long term funding,
: Maintaining balance sheei liquidity ratios,
. Maintaining/soliciting for a diverse range of firnding sources with adeqrrate back up facilities,
. Managing the concentration and profile nf . : rt mafurities, where applicable,
. L4aintaining liquiditv and funding coniilrger uy plai..,.

ib) Market Risk

Market risk is the ri:k tna' th. 'air value of future cash flows of f 'rancial instruments witl flu:i;rat'-, hecause of
changes in foreign exchange rates, p;::es and interest rates. The objective of market nsk rnanageinent p:l;cy
is to protect and enhance the Statements of Financial Positlon and performance by managing and controtring
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, arid to optimize the funding of business operations and
facilitate capital expansion. CWWDA is exposed to the following market nsris:-

(/ Currency Risk
The cunency risk is minimal as most of cash and cash equivalents held with banks are dominated in Kenya
Shillings.

m ftice Rrsf
The rerrenue source for C:W\i/DA is ttre adminisffii\,'e levy whidr is denonrinated in Kenya Shiltrngs. The
expo$.lre arises where the contract prices are denominated in foreign cunencies for the development funded
projects. This ;s mitigated by enforcing direct payments so as to reduce the exposure. Price risk is therefore
rated as minimal.
(iii) lnterest Rate Risk
The Agency's financial condition may be adversety afuded as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The
interest rate risk is minimal as the Agenry does not have any bonowings.
(c) OperationalRisk
Operational risk is tre risk of direcl or indirect loss arising from a wrde variety of causes associated witr the
Agenry's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from extemal factors other tran credil
market ard fquidfi risks sttdt as @ ard regdatory requirenents and generafry accAAUe sffiards of
corporde behavior. Tle agerry will endealor to ensrre hat key operational ris*s are rnanaged n a timety
and effective tnixlner thraryh a kanranork of poticU's. pocedures ard tools b identify, assess. rnorftor ard
report such nsks.
Related Party Balances
Nature of ralded party rehtbrslips
Entities ard o0pr parties relaled to tre entity irrcfiide trose parties ufn hare abfrty b exerctn srbd r
exercise sgttrcant ktft.errce orer (s operatng and fnancral decisrons. Related parties ind.rde naragarent
personrct, 0eir assciahs and dce hrn[ nerbers. Beng a pt$Ic enfry C:WBDA lras reh5d pilies h
hb regad ant operahs mder he na$onal Gorenrnert rd Board d Elreclrs
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19. APPENDIX

APPENDIX !: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR GENERAL RECOMMENDATIONS

C\ /1ruDA has been audited up to 30r' June 2021.However certificates for the last two years have not been
received. The following audit issues were outstanding as at this date, The main challenge in dealing with most
of the issues is that they are expected to be addressed by other Government agencies and not entirely by
CV1 /VDA.

Ref
No

Reference
no. on the
extemal
audit report

lssue/observation
from the auditor

Management
comments

Action
point

Status as at 30ut

June 2021

Expected
completion
date

1 Property
plant
&equipment

Assets without
ownership

documents

These are assets
were transferred to
the entity without

transfer/ownership

documents

C\/1/\ruDA &

Parent

Ministry

CV1MDA has formed
a task force that is

working with the
parent ministry to
resolve the matter.

30u,June

2023

1 Property
plant
&equipment

Assets not recorded
in the books

The assets being
referred to are
community assets
(land)

CWVDA
&Respective

county
government

S

A task force by
CV1MDA was

dealing with the
mafter.

30r,June
2023

2 World bank
loan

The balances were
not reconciling with
the figures at the
NationalTreasury
records.

C\'1 /VDA has
already initiated
reconciliations.

cmvDA-
Finance

Manger

The matter was still
pending

30r, June
2023

3 Trade and
other
receivables

Receivables that
have been

outstanding for long
period

CV1MDA has
already initiated

reconciliations and

also contracted a

debt collector to
assist the debts.

C\/1MDA
CEO

Finance

Manager
&legalofflcer

The matter was still
pending with

consultations going

on.

30t' June
2023

3 Trade and
other
receivables

Balances that are
not in agreement
with the records of
the WSPs

Teams from both
parties have been
formed to reconcile
the balances.

C\/1MDA-

cEo &

Finance
Manger

The matter was still
pending with

consultations going

0n.

30t' June
2023

4 Non-revenue
water

The level of non-
revenue water was
too high as
compared to the
international

standards.

The high
incidences of
vandalism of water
assets has

contribute to this
status

cu ruDA

cEo,
Technical

and Bulk unit
managers,

This requires
continuous attention
and is therefore on
going.

2023
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE AGENCY

During the period under review, the agency implemented prolects as follows.

ProJect Name Period
Funding
Level.
Kes

Financier No of Gontracts Status

Water and
Sanitation
Development
Project.
(wsDP)

5 Years

(2018-2022)

4,0 Bn World Bank

Twelve (12)

Contracts.

Works for Drilling and equipping of three
replacement boreholes-Three Boreholes
equipped, tested, and commissioned.
Localized protection works for the
borehole chambers completed.

- 6 Works
Contracts.

- 5 Consultancies

- 1 Goods

Works for second Baricho Kakuyuni
Pipeline on going

Consultancy services for the design and
construction of second Baricho Kakuyuni
Pipeline - Phase I (design) completed,
Works on going

Works for Construction of Mombasa
Water Distribution Works for North
Mainland (Short Term Works) Lot 1A -

Contract signed and works ongoing at 5%

lmprovement of
Drinking Water
and Sanitation
Systems in
Mombasa - The
Mwache Project

5 Years

14.8 Bn

French
Development
Bank (AFD)

Eleven Contracts Key Milestones

(2019-2024)

Consultancy Services for Preparation of
Detailed Designs, Tender Documents,
Safeguards (ESIA and RAP) Reports and
Construction Supervision of Mwache Dam
Transmission Pipelines and Associated
Terminal Reservoirs - Design work
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- Six (6)

Consultancies

- Four (4) works

contracts.

- One (1) goods

contract

Ana /'l I lAlarlrcvrrv I r, rrvr.\J

Contract

t'

Consultancy Services for the preparation

of preliminary design, Tender Documents,
Safeguards and Construction supervision
of Mwache Water Treatment Plant -

Design work ongoing.

Consultancy services for Long Term
Technical Assistance - Contract signed
and Consultancy Services ongoing.

Works for Construction tlf Likoni

Emergency Wofis - Corrtract s[ned aM
vn(s ongoing.

Cc ,;tancy seMces i:r Likolr!

Eaergu"ncy Works - Phase l(design)
crr',:olete<i. Pt:asr: ll (sr rgqrvisi^4; onq,:ir ;g

Works for Conrtruction of South Mainla^d 
I

and West Mainland Water Distribution anc
Sanitation Works - Design reviews
ongoiq.
Consultancy services for S,ruth Mainlano
and West Mainland Water Distribution and

Sanitation Works - Contract signed and

Financing Agreement Ready (EPC+F
proorernant conptetO). Axaitrg
Cat r€t approvd hrt lhe Natiff)d
Treasury hcs recornrnended the use C
Pub[c Privats Parfrerships Framework of
contractlng tte pqect as opposed to the
Engineering Procurernenl Corstruction
and Frame\ilork.

Works for Changannve Repooling -Works
have stalled due to cmtractor non-
performance

Ilbrks br Rehabilrlation of Pemba Dam -

cortracbrm site, inf,ementation of the
uorksbeng fa$ tracked. The physical
progress b at 83%

llzima il
Pipeline Pmjec't

I

201V2024 &158r'
,\t*$ EYttt
Ul lll rd L r.rri'

Bank

2021-2122 2.48n

Proposed Re-
Use of KPC Ot
Pipeline

Works olnenUy on going

Approxim
ately
1Bfl.

KPC/GoK

African

Developncnt
Bank (AfDB)

One (1)Wuks
Conkact

Fcrur (4) Ccntracts

-Ttree l{brks
Contracts

- One
Cmsfarv

Srnal Torns
Water and

Sanrtation

lrnprovement

Pqpd

n1vnz3
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Works for Watamu Water Distribution
Network Lot 2A - Approval of the Master
Llst granted on March 1 2021 . Contractor
on site and has fast-tracked the project

cunenty at 50%

lratimalf'Jate;
Harvesting and
Urourto Water

Exploitaticn

zt)19t2020;

2et?0t20?2.

qjQyg. nent 9i
Kenya (GoK)

r3 Wor!.r.

Contracts

Maka;niniDam
(Dam,

Treatment Plant

and Pipeline
Construction

170M

1.2838
One (1)Works
Ccntract (Design -

Brldd)

2021t2022
Govemment of
Kenya (GoK)

rtl tt

Consultancy Services for design review
and supervision of Changamwe Repooling
Sewerage i3cheme, Rehabilitation of
Pemba Da;n and Watamu Water
Dishibution Network Lot 2.^..- . "r iract
sinqed and Works c.n gar,3

Firi,rsical Progress of wcrks at 95%

inis pr+ject has attracted a pending bill oi
Ke,, 55,0110,000 ,lue to budget cuts.

Works Contract for design and build of the
Dam and Water Treatment Plant signed.
Designs projected to be completed by
November 2021. Construction works to

commence in Decernber 2021.

Consultancy Services for design review
and supervision of Makanrini dam works
uras srgned and supervision seMces

lmprovement ol
Drirenglflder
at Dongo Krrndu

Special
Economrc Zone
(SEA

2019t2072 500M
Govemmenl of
Kenya (GoK)

Two p)in One.(1)
Works Contracts

/ Fhase I - Coosf'Jcloo works conrpleteo

r' Phase ll - Conskuction works fcr 2.5knn of
pipeline ongoing and physical progress at
25%.

Cross County
Water

Distribubon
Proiecls

n19t20n 50M
Govemmentof
Kenya (CoK)

Three (3)Works
Contracts

The three (3) proiects are substantiaf
complete. A balance of Ksh. 25 million
uhich was a pending has been disbursed
by Se National Treasury.

r) County
Based, i)
Drotr$t
llilryatron. [i)
Constihrency
Programs-
Eqnlization
Furd. S.ndl
Dansad %m

Annua[y
OYer lGh
200 m

anudy

Covemmentof
Kenya (CoK)

Equalization
Furd-67 Wotks

Conracts.

Eg.rahzation Fund Prc{ecE are sded at
approxrmately 81 %. Kes. 646.8M dbbursed
agains Kes.919.l M certfu. lGs. 711.6M
reqred b comphfe [e cuilncts. One
ormfi (fftyra Cmfahls LH) rerr
for arbiHin dre b Ure deb/ed Eymefit.

Continuous.
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& Waterfor
Sctools.

Universal
Health
Coverage

Ksh.32M
Gi.venrnent of
Kenria ({luK)

For{ (4, Wi,rks
Contracts

Small dams' pans and boreholes-CWWDA
received only Kes tl4m out of the required
Kes 175m. Projects have stafled.

Water for schools successfully cornpleted

t ''tss CounU Waterr Prgec& works on

ij : {}1rr'€rrl€f lt Procest 0c-:. pi*ixi. N.l
disbursement and works ongoing

SmallDams, Pans
and Boreholes -
26 Works
Contract.

Cross County
Projectsi Works
Contracts
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APPENDIX lll: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Break down of Tiansfers from the State
Department of Water and Sanitation

Bank Statrment Date Amount (Ksh) FY to which to
the amounts
- ile

il 2021n0n
A. RECURRENTFUNDS

tic:urent Funds

Recurrent Fi'nds

Recurrent Funds

Recurrent Funds

Recunent Funds

Recurrent Funds

_l-

.)h July, 2021 32,552,700

34,416,667

34,416,667

34,416,667

,145,5S,703

r\ 20121

llth Aug, 2021 FY 21t22

FY 21t22

FY 21t22

FY 21122

FY 21r22

Reannent Funds

29th Sept, 2021

7th Set)t, 2021

34,416,666

34,416,667 FY 211224h Nov, 2021

2^a Dec2A21 34,416.667 FY 21t22

J+,+ 1b,00/ r I Zl/-:

7h Feb,2022

2mMarch.N72

Recurrent Funds tu"'Jan, zuzz

Rei;;rrent Funds

Recunent Funds 34,416,667

Recunent Funds 4k Apnl,2022 34,416,667 FY 21122

Recunent Funds th May.2022 ,667u,416 r{ 21t22

I

I

I
I

Recunent Fr.nds 7a Jwe.2072 v 4 1 6 ,667 FY t2221

W Jme.N/2 34,416,667 FY 21M

TOTAT
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B. DEVELOPMENTGRANTS

Cross County Bulk Water and

Sanitation Services

Donqo Kundu \ /ater Supply

Moiiioasa

ltwache Water Pipeline

Extensin

OentUopment of Blue Economy

i'ri[dive- Csnedin of

th iuiy, 2021 25,000,000 20-21

65,00^,1 -

225,000,c00

25,000,000

30,000,000

Description Bank
Statement
Date

Amount
(Kshs)

Totat (Kshs) FY to which to the
amounts relate

Water & Sanitation Services

Tana Delta Flood Control-
Tana River

Tana River Water Projects

CVlMDA

rovement P

Mwache Wate, Pipeline

Extension

10,000,000

17,500,000 372,500,000

lmprovenent of Drinking Wata
& Sanitation Systems in

Mombasa

th July, 2021

75,000,000

20-21

25,000,000Mwache Water Pipelftrc

Extension

Water & Sanitation Services
lmprovement Prqect

26n Aug, 2021 25,000,000 125,000,000 21-22

Cross Cornty Bulk Water ard
Sanitation Services

lmorovement Proqramne

29t O€t 2021 37,000,000 21-22

lmprovement of Drinking Water
& Sanitation Systens in
Mombasa

75,000,000

25,000,000

Water & Sa*talion Services
lmprorrement Proiect

'l$ t{ov, 2021 25,m0,000 125.000,000 n-u

Drought trlitigation fund for
lan, EaS (Kisarri W&r Pan)

15t'IVov,2021 20,m0,0m 21-22

DrorqHl,ff,qdionftmds I tf ltov. ZOZ1 i 85.000.0m z1-22
37.500,0m
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Potable Water to Fish landing

sites at the Coast

Connection of Potable Water tn

two Fish Market at the Coast at
Malindi and !-ikoni

15,000,000

Supply Water to Livestock

Holdinq Grounds

25th Nov, 2021 47,500,000 100,000,000 21-22

Universal Health Care 25th Nov, 2021 16,000,000 21-22

Development of Blue Economy
lnitiative - Connection of
Potable Water to Fish 1.,':iir., ,

sites at the Coast

Connection of Potabh Water
trso Fish Market at the Cnast

Malindi and Likoni'
Supply V/aier to Livestock 20h April,2,'22
Hold Grounds

9th llay,2022

----ftol
^r 

' 
I

37,500,000

:5,000,000

100,cllo,t'-i 21-22

21-22Cross County Bulk Water and

Sanitation Services
lmprovement Proqramme

r9

47,500,000

37,000,000

knprovement of Drinking Water

& Sanitation Systems in

Mombasa

Mwache Water Ppeline
Extensin

lff May,2022

75,000,000

15,000,000 90,000,000

Universal Healfir Care 23e iune,2A2 I
4.5f 0,000

21-22

Z t-LL

Total 1,137,010.000
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Description Bank Statement Date Amount (Kes) FY to which the

amounts relate to
WSDP 103,552,319.20

WSDP. RAP

implementation fundinq
39,815,748.50 21-22

WSDP. RAP
implementatiorr fundinq

8h July, 2021

9th July, 2021

9th iuly, 2021 15,000,000 21-22

3n Feb,20D

C. DONOR RECEIPTS

WSDP 105,256,964 21-22
WSDP 2N 2022 ;,'000.000 21-22

WSDP 3a March 2022 ,UOU T: 21:22

WSDP 6tlt 2022 197 62/.$l;,'.1 21-22
WSNP. FIAP 3t' iune, 2C22 30.i00 ,,i;u i.1.22

ementatron

2ff.,;:l?. t')22
'r!'0TAL 70

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

_. ._.-- __ |

L -22
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